Agenda
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Thursday, 21 October 2021 at 7.30 pm
New Council Chamber, Town Hall, Reigate
This meeting will be held remotely. Committee
Members will be provided with the details of how to
connect to the meeting one day before the meeting.
Members of the public may observe the proceedings
live on the Council’s website.

Members:
M. S. Blacker
G. Buttironi
Z. Cooper
M. Elbourne
J. C. S. Essex
P. Harp
N. D. Harrison
A. King

N. C. Moses
S. Parnall
S. Sinden
M. Tary
R. S. Turner
S. T. Walsh
C. T. H. Whinney

Substitutes:
Conservatives:

R. Absalom, J. Baker, A. C. J. Horwood, J. P. King and
C. Stevens

Residents Group:

G. Adamson and R. Harper

Green Party:

J. Booton, P. Chandler, S. McKenna, R. Ritter and D. Torra

Liberal Democrats

J. E. Philpott

For enquiries regarding this agenda;
Contact: 01737 276182
Email: democratic@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
Published 13 October 2021

Mari Roberts-Wood
Interim Head of Paid Service

1.

Apologies for absence and substitutions
To receive any apologies for absence and notification of any
substitute Members in accordance with the Constitution.

2.

Minutes

(Pages 7 - 14)

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the previous
meeting.
3.

Declarations of interest
To receive any Declarations of Interest (including the existence
and nature of any Party Whip).

4.

Organisation Portfolio Holder Updates

(Pages 15 - 38)

To receive an update from the Organisation Portfolio Holders for
Corporate Policy & Resources, Finance & Governance and
Investment & Companies and make any observations to
Executive Members.
5.

Environmental Sustainability: Progress update

(Pages 39 - 78)

To receive a progress update on the work towards the objectives
set out in the Council’s Environmental Sustainability Strategy and
proposed new actions at Annex 1 and 2.
To provide any observations for consideration by the Executive
on 18 November.
6.

Companies Performance Update - Autumn 2021

(Pages 79 - 120)

To note the Autumn 2021 Companies Performance Update, as
set out in the report and Annexes, and to make any observations
for consideration by the Commercial Ventures Executive SubCommittee.
7.

Constitution of Budget Scrutiny Panel

(Pages 121 - 124)

To consider and agree the membership and scope of work of the
Budget Scrutiny Review Panel taking place on 1 December 2021.
8.

Overview and Scrutiny
Programme 2021/22

Committee

Forward

Work (Pages 125 - 134)

To consider and agree any changes to the schedule for Overview
and Scrutiny Committee’s Forward Work Programme 2021/22.

9.

Executive
To consider any items arising from the Executive which might be
subject to the ‘call-in’ procedure in accordance with the
provisions of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out
in the Constitution.

10.

Any other urgent business
To consider any item(s) which, in the opinion of the Chairman,
should be considered as a matter of urgency - Local Government
Act 1972, Section 100B(4)(b).
(NOTE: Under the Committee and Sub-Committee Procedure
Rules set out in the Constitution, items of urgent business
must be submitted in writing but may be supplemented by
an oral report.)

11.

Exempt Business
RECOMMENDED that members of the Press and public be
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business
under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the
grounds that:
(i) It involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act as the information in the report relates to the
financial or business affairs of the authority; and
(ii) The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.

12.

Companies Performance Update, Autumn 2021 (Exempt)
To note any Exempt information in relation to the Companies
Performance Update, Autumn 2021.

(Pages 135 - 156)

Our meetings
As we would all appreciate, our meetings will be conducted in a
spirit of mutual respect and trust, working together for the
benefit of our Community and the Council, and in accordance
with our Member Code of Conduct. Courtesy will be shown to
all those taking part.
Streaming of meetings
Meetings are broadcast live on the internet and are available to
view online for six months. A recording is retained for six years
after the meeting. In attending any meeting, you are recognising
that you may be filmed and consent to the live stream being
broadcast online, and available for others to view.
Accessibility
The Council’s agenda and minutes are provided in English.
However, the Council also embraces its duty to anticipate the
need to provide documents in different formats, such as audio,
large print or in other languages. The Council will provide such
formats where a need is identified prior to publication or on
request.
Notice is given of the intention to hold any part of this meeting
in private for consideration of any reports containing “exempt”
information, which will be marked accordingly.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
September 2021

Minutes

BOROUGH OF REIGATE AND BANSTEAD
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at the New Council
Chamber - Town Hall, Reigate on Thursday, 9 September 2021 at 7.30 pm.
Present: Councillors M. S. Blacker, Z. Cooper, M. Elbourne, J. C. S. Essex, P. Harp,
N. D. Harrison (Chair), A. King, N. C. Moses, S. Parnall, S. Sinden, M. Tary, R. S. Turner,
S. T. Walsh and C. T. H. Whinney
Also present: Councillors M. Brunt, V. Lewanski, C. Neame.

24.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
There were no apologies for absence.
Councillor Buttironi was in attendance remotely.

25.

MINUTES
The Minutes of the last meeting on 9 September 2021 were approved.

26.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest.

27.

PRESENTATION ON THE WORK OF RAVEN HOUSING TRUST
The Committee received a presentation from social housing provider, Raven
Housing Trust Directors, Amy Cheswick, Director of Customers and Partners, and
Jo Hills, Director of Assets & Services. As the largest social housing provider in
Reigate and Banstead, Raven Housing Trust (RHT) gave an overview of the core
activities of the organisation, performance of their housing services, challenges
during the pandemic and beyond, planned development and joint venture schemes,
affordability, regeneration of homes, its Net Zero Carbon programme, health and
safety matters including fire safety. The Raven Housing Trust presentation was
published as part of the O&S agenda pack.
Members made observations and asked questions which included the following
areas:


Homelessness - Members raised the issue of a rise in potential evictions
for housing tenants as court orders and bailiff enforcement restarted
following the COVID-19 emergency which paused this temporarily. Councillor
Neame, Executive Member and Portfolio Holder for Housing & Support, told

7

Agenda Item 2
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
September 2021

Minutes

the Committee that the Council’s housing team had worked hard during the
COVID-19 crisis to keep tenants affected in their current tenancy in order to
prevent them becoming homeless. This included negotiation with all social
housing and private landlords on deposits and rent arrears and assisting with
money advice. Raven Housing Trust had responded to this challenge by
working closely with the Council to minimise evictions during the pandemic.


Damp, mould and condensation – issues of damp, mould and
condensation in homes was raised. It was suggested this was particularly a
problem for residents who could not afford to heat their homes due to fuel
poverty and those who had long-term health problems. Managing ventilation
and moisture in homes was discussed. RHT confirmed that it was tackling
damp, mould and condensation across 866 homes with a £1.2m investment
from 2020-23 as part of the Healthy Homes initiative. Following a survey of
homes and review of data from its call logs, RHT had prioritised repair work
for elderly people and those living in the dampest properties. Reporting any
issues for vulnerable residents and hidden sufferers so these could be
identified in call data was important.



Building and fire safety including Nobel House, Redhill – it was
confirmed that RHT was investing £8.5m over 5 years to address building
and fire safety concerns locally arising from the Grenfell fire in London as
well as statutory changes set out in the Fire Safety Act and Building Safety
Bill. Nobel House, Redhill was discussed which was an Avon Rents Ltd
building. The fire alarm system and evacuation procedures had been
updated in the flats following issues raised in a fire engineers’ report.
Cladding safety issues had been identified as costing £14m to fix with a
potential cost to leaseholders of £100k per flat. RHT was supporting and
informing residents alongside Members and the local MP.



Development of properties – 933 homes over five years with an average of
130 affordable homes per year and 30 market sale homes per year were
proposed in Raven Housing Trust’s Development and Sales strategy 202122 to 2025-26. This was in line with RBBC’s Housing Strategy which
supported mixed tenure of housing. Preference was for land-led delivery by
acquiring sites and investing in existing properties to enable better
management of a whole site.



Southridge Homes – this was a joint venture between Raven Housing Trust
and RBB which targeted 50% of affordable housing on sites which was
higher than government targets set on affordable housing. This aimed to
build long term sustainable communities.



Social value assessment – Members asked how conditions were improved
for residents and the difference Raven Housing Trust (RHT) was making
through social value. This was a tangible benefit to help bring about
improved social, economic and environmental benefits. This helped to
minimise payment debts and support people who were struggling financially.



Digital inclusion – a digital support team at Raven Housing Trust helped
residents who could not access services digitally. The organisation had
worked with Voluntary Action Reigate and Banstead (VARB) to supply

8

Agenda Item 2
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
September 2021

Minutes

refurbished laptops to support learning for children and set up one to one
sessions to improve digital skills, and support elderly and vulnerable
residents who struggled to access online services.


Supporting community activities – the organisation had supported local
community activities such as a litter pick day and worked closely with ward
councillors to support these local initiatives.



Performance and benchmarking – Raven Housing Trust reported that
overall satisfaction from residents on their housing services was 84% in
2020/21 compared to 80% in 2019/20; 78% believed they listened to and
acted on residents’ views. It was confirmed that wider housing association
comparison data showed that RHT performed well and better than other
housing providers.



Regeneration programme – a long term programme of regeneration of
properties was taking place in areas that were in need, starting with
Chavecroft. This was part of the aim to make homes desirable, comfortable
and affordable to run. Unpopular homes and unviable homes in terms of
investment were disposed of and replaced with high-quality, sustainable and
affordable homes. In response to Member questions, RHT confirmed that
this did not mean fewer properties as 531 net extra new homes were
planned over five years.



Net Zero Carbon programme – this programme of work and grant funding
was discussed with benefits to residents that included lower net carbon
emissions and more efficient homes. Partnership with RBBC included a
range of grant funding from the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund
(SHDF) and Local Authority Delivery (LAD) Scheme to fund energy efficient
upgrades to low income and low energy efficiency rated homes. Retrofit
plans were completed on 12 homes in 2021 using £0.6m funding with £1.8m
proposed funding over the next two years.

In addition, written responses to the Committee had been provided in advance on
numbers of socially rented properties, current number of voids in social housing
across the borough and numbers on the waiting list and transfer for social housing.
Committee Chair, Councillor Harrison, thanked Raven Housing Trust directors for
their presentation and attending the meeting to respond to Member questions.
RESOLVED – to note the Raven Housing Trust presentation and observations of
the Committee.
28.

QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE REPORT 2021/22
The Committee received reports on the Council’s performance for the first quarter of
2021/22 including Key Performance Indictor (KPI) reporting, as well as revenue and
budget monitoring. The reports were due to go to the Executive on 19 September
2021.
The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Policy and Resources, Councillor Lewanski,
introduced the KPI report by noting that, out of the 10 KPIs, 2 were red rated:

9

Agenda Item 2
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
September 2021



Minutes

KPI2 which related to business rates collection.
KPI10 which related to recycling.

Members discussed and asked questions on the following areas:
Recycling – It was noted that the target of 60% was a stretch target, although this
was open to discussion. It was noted that the target remained 60% and that the
Committee would be consulted on the setting of future targets later in the year. It
was noted that the large increase in overall tonnage collected was
disproportionately in favour of residual waste.
Business Rates – It was identified that the unallocated business rates in a
suspense account had not yet been allocated due to the need to ascertain the
correct payer. The Committee noted that, once allocated, the indicator would be
within tolerance.
The Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance and Governance, Councillor
Schofield, outlined the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme performance for
Q1 2021/22. The projected full year outturn for the Revenue Budget was £17.67m
against a management budget of £17.696m and there were no material variances
to report. A cautious approach continued to be taken in relation to the Financial
impacts of the pandemic; the main area of concern remained forecast income
shortfalls compared to budget. The Capital Programme forecast was 60% below the
approved Programme at £56.29m. This was due to forecast slippage of budgets to
2022/23 and a small net underspend.
During the discussion:
 It was noted that major concerns existed which related to COVID-19 income
losses which were forecast for the year on a prudent basis at £2.3m, with
offsetting government funding which had ended after Q1 of just under £0.5m.
A £2.0m Earmarked Reserve had been set aside for these income losses in
2021/22.
 It was noted that this would be a serious challenge for the 2022/23 budget,
requiring additional steps to re-establish income streams or to identify cost
savings to offset them.
 In relation to Car Parking income, members confirmed that they expected
long term decline with more people working from home, and reduced retail
and leisure activity. In relation to Leisure Services, the fee due from the
contracted Leisure Provider had been waived during the pandemic; the
Interim Head of Paid Service noted that the provider had now put in a
proposition for the management fee going forward that was due to be
considered soon. It was noted that the impact of the pandemic on
commercial income/rents at £40k was substantially less than the loss
experienced by many other councils.
 Overall, it was identified that, despite being early in the 2021/22 budget
cycle, it appeared there were some improvements to the income forecasts.
 In relation to Capital, it was questioned whether the delays in the
Commercial Investments and Housing Delivery programmes would provide
savings in the cost of borrowing. This was confirmed.

10

Agenda Item 2
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
September 2021

Minutes

RESOLVED:
1. To note Key Performance Indicator (KPI) performance for Q1 2021/22 as
detailed in the report and at Annex 1;
2. To note the Budget Monitoring forecasts for Q1 2021/22 as detailed in the
report and at Annex 2.
29.

LOCAL PLAN SCRUTINY PANEL REPORT - CLIMATE CHANGE AND
SUSTAINABLE CONSTRUCTION SPD
Members considered the Minutes from the Local Plan Scrutiny Panel which met on
25 August to review the public consultation responses to the Climate Change and
Sustainable Construction Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).
Councillor Parnall, Chair of the Panel, noted that the SPD was an advisory
document designed to give residents and developers advice at pre-planning stage
and taken alongside the Local Plan Core Strategy which was due to be reviewed by
July 2024. The public consultation had taken place successfully and was well
received by residents and planners alike.
Chair, Councillor Harrison, requested that the Planning Policy team take on board
Panel Members’ comments and whether there were changes that the Executive
needed to know whether this had been acted upon. He requested a detailed
response about how the Panel recommendations were being acted upon for
discussion at Executive on 16 September 2021.
Members made observations and comments on matters which included:






Pre-emptive tree felling – a real matter of concern to residents. A number
of representations had been received by Members on this issue.
Historic England and heritage sites which were not always coordinated as
part of the planning process.
Gas boilers –new gas pipes with extended life for next 80 years could be
used for hydrogen.
Electric vehicle charging points – residents were not necessarily aware of
some of the policies already in place.
Water resources including use of grey water to conserve and use water.

RESOLVED – that the Committee:
1. Approve the Minutes of the O&S Local Plan Scrutiny Panel on Climate
Change and Sustainable Construction Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) which met on 25 August 2021 to review the public consultation
responses.
2. Agree that the Executive, were asked when considering to adopt the Climate
Change and Sustainable Construction SPD on 16 September 2021, to note
the observations of the Committee and its Scrutiny Panel.
30.

HYBRID WORKING SCRUTINY PANEL UPDATE
Members received the Minutes and recommendations from the Hybrid Working
Scrutiny Panel which met on 19 August 2021 to review progress on developing a

11

Agenda Item 2
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
September 2021

Minutes

blend of remote and office-based work for the organisation following the emergency
pandemic.
Panel Chair, Councillor Walsh, gave an overview to the Committee of the Panel
discussions. This included:





Maintaining the positive elements of hybrid working in a post-pandemic world
was an opportunity to improve delivery of Council services for the benefit of
residents.
There were benefits and disadvantages to different models of hybrid working
that Members and officers had experienced during the pandemic. Further
work was needed to understand these changes.
A fundamental shift in working practices for Members and officers had taken
place as a result of the pandemic and the resulting cultural changes for the
organisation needed to be analysed.
The current legislative position on hosting remote Council meetings was
hampering those Members who wanted to participate fully in the democratic
process but could not vote if they attended meetings virtually (due to current
legislation).

Members raised points about the democratic process and voting remotely, the pros
and cons of working remotely, being office-based and a blend of both types of work,
benefits to the environment, improved work/life balance and flexibility for Members
and staff able to work from home and staff welfare.
RESOLVED that:
1. The Committee agree the Minutes and recommendations from the O&S
Hybrid Working Scrutiny Panel meeting on 19 August 2021.
2. The observations of the Committee be considered by the Hybrid Working
Steering Group. A future meeting of the Panel to be scheduled, if
required.
31.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
Members considered the future work programme for the Committee as set out in
Annex 1 to the report.
It was noted that the Companies Performance Update – Autumn 2021 was due be
discussed at 21 October meeting. The Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2022-2027 was listed for 9 December.
RESOLVED that the Committee noted the proposed future work programme of the
Committee.

32.

EXECUTIVE
It was reported that there were no items arising from the Executive that might be
subject to the ‘call-in’ procedure in accordance with the provisions of the Overview
and Scrutiny Procedure Rules.

12

Agenda Item 2
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
September 2021

33.

Minutes

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business.

The Meeting closed at 9.59 pm

13

This page is intentionally left blank

14

Organisation
15

Agenda Item 4

Portfolio Updates

Agenda Item 4

Corporate Policy &
Resources
16

Information Technology
Transformational change to the Council delivered during the pandemic:
- Rapid implementation of systems to enable staff and Council Members to
work remotely and securely; and
- Development of new processes to ensure IT systems deliver high availability.

•

Data Centre and Telephony systems are now due for renewal; consultancy phase
completed to identify improvements:
- A strategy of ‘cloud first’ is being adopted which will improve resilience and
performance.

17

•

The CRM system continues to be developed to enable the delivery of online
automated transactions.

•

Video conferencing facilities are being improved to enable the delivery of Council
Committee meetings both online and hybrid.

•

IT Projects continue to be delivered with particular focus on improving resilience
and Disaster Recovery capability

•

This work all informs a new IT Strategy which will be created this year and will
cover the next five years.

Agenda Item 4

•

• Quarterly reporting on performance and risk
• Programme and project management support, coordination of

corporate governance boards and production of project
dashboards
• Added value:
18

- Improvements to corporate project and programme
management framework, building on experience and best
practice
- Support provided to service areas in relation to performance
enhancement, and fees & charges opportunities

Agenda Item 4

Projects & Performance

Corporate Policy
Corporate policy
• Preparation of year 1 Corporate Plan Annual Report
• Corporate policy support provided in relation to a range of issues
19

including Covid recovery work; development of the Commercial
Strategy Part 1; Equality Objectives, policy and reporting;
Surrey-wide joint working.

• Future focus to include support for development of Commercial
Agenda Item 4

Strategy Part 2, Leisure & Culture Strategy; and advice and
support on other emerging cross cutting/regional/national
initiatives.
Environmental sustainability
• Comprehensive progress update provided elsewhere on the
O&S agenda

• Communications and Customer Contact have continued to

devote much resource to supporting the Council’s emergency
Covid-19
• Easing of restrictions also means the teams are increasing their

Agenda Item 4

Communications & Customer Contact

support for BAU activities.
20

• Internally, work towards hybrid working is being supported by the

Communications team at a strategic and tactical level

• Key business objectives that have been pursued include:

- Development of the Council’s communications channels to
include more e-marketing; and
- Provision of a broader customer contact interface, primarily
through social media

Data & Insight
• Until recently the team had been diverted to support the

21

Council’s Covid response work,
- eg supporting a very targeted approach to surge testing using
local data and insight
• Now the remit of the team has been broadened it is initially
concentrating on:
- Data audit and data improvement; and
- Consultation activities (for example, Covid impact research,
Merstham Rec consultation and other resident consultations)
- Providing added value by supporting teams across the Council
to use data and insight to deliver services more efficiently and
effectively

Agenda Item 4

Hybrid working
• Focus is continuing to harness what COVID has taught us –

working differently to the benefit of our residents:
• Hybrid working for the Council has been defined and is being

tested with Services
22

-

For officers, meetings online as default is the agreed approach
Phased approach to officer return to the office has started for those
who require it
Phased approach for team interaction has started
Phased approach for Member
meetings/Businesses/residents/Mayoral duties has also started

Agenda Item 4

Organisational Development & HR

Organisational Development & HR
Hybrid working (cont)
• For the medium term, changes to enable Hybrid Working are

23

Agenda Item 4

being progressed:
- Full procurement process to commence for physical works to
the site required (architects already procured for the design).
- Change agents to support human/behavioural impact
elements of hybrid are being procured (continuous
engagement)
- ICT architecture reviewed and ICT Strategy revised in line
with future ways of working

Implementation of Resourcing Review
• Good progress has been made on the first stage of work –

completing a review of the OD & HR Service
-

Recommendations include a focus on improved Workforce Planning
for the Council.

24

• HR and Finance are working together to review and improve the

current processes on resourcing at the Council.
-

This work is being scoped – specific projects will then be
progressed through the Organisation Board.

• Part of the Council’s resourcing approach includes supporting

apprenticeships throughout the organisation.
-

Agenda Item 4

Organisational Development & HR

Throughout the pandemic, both traditional apprenticeships have
been offered as well as use of the Apprenticeship Levy to upskill
staff (more detail can be found in our Apprentice Fact Sheet)

25

Finance &
Governance
Agenda Item 4

Finance
•

26
•

Progress 2020/21
Update to MTFP approved by Executive in July 2020 and refreshed in the November
2020 budget report
2021/22 Capital Investment and Treasury Management Strategies approved
Regular updates to Executive on Covid-19 budget impacts; monthly returns
submitted to MHCLG and grants and income loss claims submitted
Statement of Accounts 2019/20 published and audited
Progress 2021/22
Forecast 2021/22 Revenue budget gap can be balanced through use of reserves but
ongoing impacts of income losses due to Covid is a significant concern
Capital Programme proposals for 2021/22 onwards were relatively modest following
significant growth last year; to be funded in the main through prudential borrowing
Service & Financial Planning for 2022/23 progressing on schedule with report to 18
November Executive and Budget Scrutiny Panel on 1 December

Agenda Item 4

Finance & Governance

Legal & Procurement
27

Agenda Item 4

28

Legal - Progress 2021/22
• Recruitment of an experienced Planning Solicitor (March 2021), Property solicitor (May
2021)and Legal Secretary (September 2021). Very little transactional/operational work is
being outsourced with income now being generated from the drafting of section 106
agreements, leases and licences.
• Data protection and Information Governance will move from Legal Services to the Data
and Insights team to ensure that all data functions can feed into the Organisational
Board raising the profile of the importance of data processing and enhancing a culture of
data protection compliance.

Agenda Item 4

Legal & Procurement

Land Charges - Progress 2021/22
• A review of Local Land Charge services to improve accuracy and efficiency was
completed this year with all data being successfully migrated to the Surrey Building
Control Partnership, in turn increasing the quality of land charges information.
Procurement - Progress 2021/22
•

Following a Procurement Audit conducted earlier this year, a focused workstream has
been created to look at how to strengthen the centralised procurement service with a
view to ensuring that we positively continue to seek best value when procuring goods and
services across all service area.

29

Revenues, Benefits
& Fraud
Agenda Item 4

Council Tax & Business Rate Collection
At the end of Period 5, Council Tax collection for 2021/22 was at 47.15%, an increase of
0.31% for the same period in 2020/21. In 2019/20 the collection rate at Period 5 was
47.89%, so still not back to pre-Covid level.

•

At the end of Period 5, Business Rates collection for 2021/22 was at 48.65%, down on
last year by 2.52%. Alterations to the Retails Rate Relief (from 100% to 66% from July)
has skewed the collection rate due to revised instalment dates following re-billing.

30

•

•

Magistrates Courts are now open again for both Council Tax and Business Rates,
although due to Court closures for most of 2020/21, there is a backlog of accounts to
move to Summons stage.

•

The RBBC recovery team is also providing a recovery function on behalf of Waverley
Borough Council, as part of its commercial work.

Agenda Item 4

Revenues, Benefits & Fraud

Revenues, Benefits & Fraud (cont)
Counter Fraud
•

Cumulative figures from April 2019 to March 2021 have savings totalling £1,306.679.
This is based on Cabinet Office savings for types of fraud identification, including Housing
fraud, Right to Buy (Raven), Council Tax, Business Rates and Benefits

31

Business Grants & Covid Support
There have been a total of 11 Business Grant Schemes in place from April 2020 to the
present.

•

A total of 7,640 payments have been made to local businesses under various criteria
totalling £42,391,877.

•

The Additional Restrictions Grants (discretionary) is the only scheme still in operation,
and this closes on 31/03/2022. The funding is also being used to support businesses
through the Business Growth Grant Scheme, and £1m has been ringfenced for this
scheme.

•

Test & trace Payments – eligible for people told by the NHS to self-isolate and will lose
earnings. 479 payments of £500 had been made up to 27/09/2021, and demand is still
high. The scheme has been extended to March 2022.

Agenda Item 4

•

Agenda Item 4

Commercial &
Investment
32

Commercial & Investment
Portfolio focus
•

Focus is on overall strategy; our companies; and our assets

•

Bulk of work relates to managing existing investments – new
investment is only a small proportion

33

(1) Commercial Strategy
Commercial Strategy Part 1 agreed in December 2020

•

Work now underway to develop Commercial Strategy Part 2. Will
include:
-

Consideration by Commercial Strategy Scrutiny Panel, then
Consideration by Overview & Scrutiny Committee, then
Executive agreement

Agenda Item 4

•

(2) Companies
• Approach to company structures revisited by CVESC in April
2021
• Update on existing companies provided elsewhere on the O&S
Agenda. In summary:

Agenda Item 4

Commercial & Investment (cont)

34

Commercial & Investment (cont)
(3a) Property Assets: Income generating portfolio
•

As presented in our Capital Investment Strategy, properties within the
Council’s income generating portfolio include:

35

Work is underway to update valuations, yield information and forecasts

•

Impact of the pandemic – 94% of rent collected, with 6% shortfall
(resulting from two CVAs)

Agenda Item 4

•

(3b) Property Assets: Projects
•

Marketfield Way: Good progress - development remains on
programme; Heads of Terms Agreement being finalised with cinema
provider; other lease discussions advancing

•

Crematorium: Position under consideration following refusal of
planning permission

36

•

Horley Car Park: Development feasibility work underway

(3c) Property Assets: Acquisitions
•

No new property acquired in recent months

•

Various opportunities considered but turned down

Agenda Item 4

Commercial & Investment (cont)

Signed off by

Acting Head of Paid Service
and Director of People,
Director of Place

Author

Catriona Marchant,
Democratic Services Officer

Telephone

Tel: 01737 276066

Email

catriona.marchant@reigatebanstead.gov.uk

To

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date

Thursday, 21 October 2021

Executive Member

Deputy Leader and Portfolio
Holder for Finance and
Governance, Portfolio Holder
for Corporate Policy and
Resources, Portfolio Holder
for Investment and
Companies

Key Decision Required

N

Wards Affected

(All Wards);

Subject

Organisation Portfolio Holder Updates

Recommendations
To note the Portfolio Holder Briefings on the work of the Organisation Portfolios, as set out
in the report and presentation, and to provide any observations for consideration by
Executive Members.
Reasons for Recommendations
To consider the progress of work in the services which form part of the Organisation
Portfolios: Corporate Policy & Resources, Finance & Governance and Investment &
Companies and receive a presentation and briefings from the three Portfolio Holders.
Executive Summary
This report and presentation provides an overview of the activities undertaken within the
Organisation Portfolio service and policy areas in the municipal year 2021/22 to date.

37

Key information
Executive Portfolios
1.

Following the Annual Council meeting on 27 May 2021, the Leader of the Council
appointed Executive Members for the municipal year 2021/22. Each Councillor within
the Executive is allocated a specific portfolio responsibility, covering particular
service and policy areas.

2.

For operational purposes, these portfolios are aligned with the three themes set out
in the Borough Council’s Corporate Plan: Reigate & Banstead 2025: Our Five Year
Plan – People, Place and Organisation.

3.

The areas of responsibility of the Organisation portfolio is as follows:


Corporate Policy & Resources: Corporate Policy, Environmental Strategy,
Performance Management, Risk, Project Management Office, IT, Organisational
Development & HR, Customer Contact, Communications, Data & Insight.



Finance & Governance: Finance, Internal Audit, Procurement, Legal, Democratic
& Elections, Council Tax, Business Rates, Counter Fraud, Corporate Debt
Recovery, Revenue & Benefits Trading.



Investment & Companies: Commercial Agenda, Investment Acquisitions, Assets
& Facilities.

Overview and Scrutiny
4.

As part of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s role of holding the Executive to
account, members of the Executive provide regular briefings to the Committee on
their portfolios and key items of business within these areas.

5.

To reflect the coordinated approach of the Executive Members (or Portfolio Holders),
these briefings are presented by theme throughout the year. Portfolio Holders have
an overview and objectives, covering the particular service and policy areas, grouped
in the People, Place and Organisation themes. The Organisation Portfolio Holder
briefings are the first briefing in the Municipal Year 2021/22; People Portfolio Holder
briefings are scheduled to take place at O&S 20 January 2022 and Place Portfolio
Holder briefings at O&S 17 March 2022.

6.

Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to receive the briefings
provided and provide Advance Questions, observations and comments to the
Portfolio Holders. These will be considered to help inform future activities within these
portfolios.

38

Environmental
Sustainability
Strategy Update
39

Agenda Item 5

O&S, Oct 2021

40

That the O&S Committee:
(i) Note progress on work towards the objectives
set out in the Council’s Environmental
Sustainability Strategy and proposed new
actions provided at Annex 1 and Annex 2
(ii) Provide any observations for consideration by
the Executive on 18 November

Agenda Item 5

Recommendations

Background
• Reigate & Banstead 2025: Commitment to environmental

responsibility and sustainability
• SCC Climate Change Strategy: Agreed Spring 2020
• RBBC Environmental Sustainability Strategy: Agreed in
41

late summer 2020, accompanied by detailed Action Plan

• New sustainability team: Established within the Council in

late 2020 to facilitate Strategy delivery
ES Strategy review every 3-5 years

Agenda Item 5

• Action Plan: To be reported on and updated annually, with full

This covering slide pack should be read in
conjunction with Annexes 1 and 2 which
provide a detailed progress update.

The 2021 IPCC report states:
Unequivocal that human influence has
caused global warming

•

The scale of change is unprecedented

•

Climate change already affecting weather
and climate extremes in every region
across the globe

42

•

•

1.50C increase will be reached by 2040 or
earlier

•

Many of the changes are reversible over
time if we act

Agenda Item 5

Global Context

National Context
• The Climate Change Act 2008 sets out much of the UK’s policy

response to climate change
• The delayed Environment Bill will provide a new legal

framework relating to environmental protection
43

• Climate Change Committee (CCC) 5-year carbon budgets set

legal limits to UK emissions compared to 1990 levels:
51% by 2025
57% by 2030
78% by 2035
100% by 2050

• COP26 early November

Agenda Item 5

-

Agenda Item 5

Local Context: Borough-wide emissions
Total Borough-wide emissions, 2005-2019 (kt CO2)
1,200.0

1,000.0

800.0

44

600.0

400.0

200.0

0.0
2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Source: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbondioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019

Local Context: Borough-wide emissions
Emissions per capita, 2019 (kt CO2)
3.0
2.5
2.0

45

1.5
1.0

0.0
Domestic

Transport
Reigate & Banstead

Surrey

Commercial & Industrial
England

Source: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbondioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019

Agenda Item 5

0.5

• The Council’s total carbon footprint

(scope 1 and 2*) in 2018/19 was
1,492 tCO2
• This equates to approx. 0.2% of
borough emissions
46

• Our organisational target is to
achieve carbon neutrality (scope 1
and 2) by 2030 and carbon
neutrality (including scope 3) as
soon as possible thereafter

*Scope 1: Direct emissions from fuel combustion
Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased
electricity
Scope 3: Other indirect emissions eg supply
chain, business travel

Council emissions
(Scope 1 and Scope 2)

Purchased
gas (Scope
1)
26%

Agenda Item 5

Local Context: Council emissions

Vehicle fuel
consumption
(Scope 1)
42%

Purchased
electricity
(Scope 2)
32%

Source: RBBC ES Strategy 2020

Our ES Strategy approach
•

47

Agreed Summer 2020. Includes four
categories:
- Energy & carbon
- Low impact consumption
- Biodiversity & the natural environment
- Implementation (cross-cutting)

Areas of focus:
- Organisational (what we do as a Council)
- Borough-wide (supporting residents and
businesses)
- County-wide (working with SCC and other
districts and boroughs)
• Responsibility for Strategy implementation@
- Rests with teams right across the Council

•

Agenda Item 5

Energy & carbon

Low impact
consumption

Biodiversity & the
natural environment

Implementation
(cross-cutting)

Objective

Energy minimisation
& renewables – install
measures on council
property & promote
behaviour change

Waste reduction –
waste avoidance in
council buildings,
reducing SUPs,
promoting behaviour
change, meet
recycling targets

Ecological
enhancement –
improve tree cover,
increase soft
landscaping and
pollinator/native
species planting

Communications –
provide information
related to energy
reduction and
renewables

Water efficiency –
install measures on
council property &
promote behaviour
change

Sustainable drainage
systems – increase
SuDS & permeable
surfaces

48

Theme

Low carbon
transport – transition
council fleet to electric,
install EV chargers,
promote active
transport
Embodied Carbon
(2023/24 onwards)

Responsible
sourcing – opt for
ethical and/or low
environmental impact
solutions

Environmental
impact and pollution
prevention – minimise
use of pesticides and
peat-based compost

Agenda Item 5

RBBC Action Plan

Partnership working
– work with broad
range of stakeholders
on sustainability issues
Planning – reflect
sustainability issues in
planning documents
Procurement – take
sustainability into
account as part of
process

• Our July 2020 Action Plan includes specific actions for each Objective
• Annex 1 provides a detailed progress update in respect of 2020/21 actions
• The following three slides summarise this progress

Progress summary: Effective implementation
Resources
•
•

Sustainability team established
Commitment to consider Environmental, Social and Governance issues in our Treasury
Management Statement

Communications
•

49

Webpages updated to provide a one-stop shop for residents and businesses, including
advice on funding, practical guidance and third-party support
A two-page article about sustainability in Spring Borough News, with follow-up posts on
social media; and a two-page article about recycling in Autumn Borough News

•

Social media communications on national and international events (World Environment
Day, Plastic-Free Day etc), reducing litter and community tree-planting

Planning
•

Sustainable Construction and Climate Change SPD and sustainability checklist adopted

Partnership working
•

Sustainable Business Network established

•

Extensive work with external partners, including Surrey County Council, regional energy
hub, advisory services, charities, businesses and community groups

Agenda Item 5

•

Energy minimisation and renewable energy

Agenda Item 5

Progress summary: Energy & Carbon
•

Council energy is now carbon neutral, through a renewable energy tariff (33%) and offsets
(66%)

•

£10m Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Fund secured for Surrey, 54 properties
in R&B upgraded so far

•

800+ residents signed up to Solar Together scheme

•

Agreement to support Raven Net Zero work via waiver of up to £1m of clawback; ongoing
work to bid to Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund

50
•

Sustainability measures incorporated into design of Council-led developments

Low carbon transport
•

Joint work with SCC on Local Cycling and Walking Plan and Transport Plan

•

EV charging points installed in Horley and upgrades made to charging point at Wray Lane
car park

•

Funding secured for installation of 6 charge points in Banstead and a project initiated to roll
EV charging points out to other Council-owned sites

•

13 low-emission vehicles within the Council’s fleet (10% of total), and new Fleet
Replacement Strategy with increased focus on sustainability

•

Move to more efficient diesel bin lorries, EV HGV trialled

Progress summary: Low impact consumption
Waste reduction, water efficiency and responsible sourcing
•

Flats recycling project restarted after Covid

•

Communications activity about reuse and recycling in conjunction with Surrey
Environment Partnership to residents and businesses

•

Advice on low impact consumption for residents and businesses via website

•

Increased % of Council spend on ‘green’ office supplies

51

Progress summary: Natural environment
•

The Council planted 181 trees and created or improved 128 square metres of soft
landscaping within the borough

•

Successful joint funding bid to Defra for additional 61 trees in the borough

•

Community tree planting guide published and workshops held

•

Glyphosate only used by Council as a last resort

Agenda Item 5

Ecological enhancement and pollution reduction

Positive progress has been made and solid foundations laid since our
Strategy was adopted

•

Sustainability is being weaved throughout Council activities, through
training, internal communications and new reporting procedures

•

However, Covid-19 has inevitably impacted on our ability to make
progress in some areas, due to:
- Reduced capacity for some teams as they deal with the pandemic
(redeployments, dealing with additional responsibilities)
- Changes to working patterns
- Restrictions imposed by central Government, including multiple
lockdowns

52

•

•

Work is ongoing to address these ongoing challenges and determine
future resourcing and priorities

Agenda Item 5

Challenges

Cross Party Member Group Feedback
The progress report was shared with the Cross Party Member Sustainability Group
for comment. Points raised included:
•

Communications and engagement - The Council should do more to:
-

53

•

-

Increase public awareness of what the Council is doing about climate change and
sustainability, including making information more user-friendly
Use our own facilities to demonstrate to residents what they can do
Do more to gather feedback and views from residents

Electric vehicles and sustainable transport - We should explore:
-

•

Domestic retrofit – We should explore ways to support residents to be able to
install energy efficiency measures such as loft insulation

•

Data – Noting that efforts should continue to ensure comprehensive data for
baseline and progress should could be made available

•

Trees – The Council should consider ways to safeguard older trees as well as
planting new ones

Agenda Item 5

-

Ways to improve the infrastructure for electric vehicle charging and involve residents
and councillors in decision-making on this
Ways to increase car-pooling and stop vehicle idling outside schools

Agenda Item 5

SCC Climate Change Delivery Plan
•

In addition to our own work, we have been working with Surrey CC and
other districts and boroughs recognising that this is an issue that does not
stop at administrative borders.

•

The SCC Climate Change Delivery Plan will set out a five year
programme of activity for SCC, Local Authorities and other partners,
structured around four main themes

54

•

-

Greener Futures Communities
One Net Zero Public Estate
Build Back Better
Grow Back Greener

The SCC Delivery Plan confirms the Surrey-wide ambition for local
authorities to be net zero by 2030, and recognises that by 2025 all local
authorities will need to be able to demonstrate they are making good
progress towards this target , against a 2019/20 baseline.
Slide 16

Next steps (1) Achieving carbon reduction
targets
Getting the Council to net zero (scope 1 and 2) by 2030 will require a
number of steps:
Data
•

External support to confirm baseline and establish a carbon reduction trajectory

55

Buildings and energy use
Continue to transition our purchased energy and gas to renewable tariffs

•

Undertake site audits to determine priority activities to reduce energy use and use
renewable energy

•

Establish and implement a programme of works, and develop a project pipeline to
bid for external funding where available

Fleet
•

Agenda Item 5

•

Continue to transition our fleet to low carbon, making sure this is supported by the
required charging infrastructure
Slide 17

Agenda Item 5

Next steps (2) Other actions
Other actions from the previously agreed Action Plan include:
•

Continuing to work with local community groups, businesses and residents to
share information, facilitate sustainability projects and gain access to funding

•

More communications activity about both what the Council is doing and
about what residents themselves can do

•

Training programme for officers

56

•

Continue to roll out EV charging points across our car parks

•

Work with Surrey County Council on transport strategy and specific projects
to encourage sustainable travel

•

Incorporate sustainability considerations into our strategic procurement
review

•

Continue to develop proposals to maximise carbon sequestration and
support biodiversity on our own land, including tree planting and woodland
management
Slide 18

Next Steps (3) Proposed new actions
Some new actions are also proposed (see also Annex 2):
Proposed ‘Umbrella’ Action (to replace multiple completed actions)
•

Maintain, review and update the Council’s sustainability webpages to provide
information about sustainability and action that can be taken

Proposed New Actions

•

Undertake work to better understand organisational scope 3 emissions and identify
reduction initiatives

•

Continue to develop the Council’s waste and recycling service taking into account
requirements anticipated in the Environment Bill

•

Undertake work to engage council staff further in relation to sustainability

•

Update webpages to include information/advice about climate change adaptation

•

Continue to lobby government to ensure local authorities have powers / resources to
facilitate change

Agenda Item 5

Work with stakeholders throughout the borough to facilitate the retrofit of homes,
increasing energy efficiency and installation of low carbon technologies

57
•

Slide 19

Agenda Item 5

Final thoughts

Our ES Strategy includes a wide ranging suite of actions and good progress
has been made as summarised above and in Annex 1

•

Lots of projects and activities are underway to embed sustainable ways of
working and communicate what we are doing as a council, including
continuing to improve data collection

•

To achieve our ambitions, everyone at the Council needs to act more
sustainably and support local residents and businesses to do the same

58

•

•

Support for members will continue to be provided:
- All member briefing, 4 November, with more member training to be rolled out
- New section in committee reports setting out sustainability implications of
-

decisions
Questions, suggestions and requests for information from members always
welcome to sustainability@reigate-banstead.gov.uk

Slide 20

ANNEX 1: Environmental Sustainability Strategy Action Plan – 2020/21 Progress, challenges and next steps

Performance
indicator

Baseline and progress

Energy & Carbon: Energy Minimisation
Reduce operational energy consumption through fabric improvements and installing energy efficient equipment and fittings

59

2020/21 Actions:
 Implement measures identified as part of the Display Energy Certificates (DEC) recommendation report for key
three assets (i.e. Harlequin Theatre, Town Hall and Earlswood Depot) as part of scheduled renewal/upgrade
programme (ongoing action)
 Use whole life cycle analysis as a decision tool during plant renewal programme upgrades and maintenance
programmes (ongoing action)
 Improve loft insulation and wall insulation with a focus on top three key assets as part of scheduled
renewal/upgrade programme (ongoing action)
 Continue to install LEDs throughout the Council assets on top 10 assets or in conjunction with any scheduled
renewal/upgrade programme (ongoing action)
 Introduce variable speed drives (VSD) for fans, pumps and compressors as part of scheduled renewal/upgrade
programmes where viable (ongoing action)
 Investigate and where appropriate implement opportunities to reduce energy consumption from the Council’s
leased assets, subject to lease agreements (ongoing action)
Progress:
 A rolling programme of mechanical and electrical works include energy efficiency requirements in all tender
documents and all reactive & routine maintenance covers a phased renewal of LED lighting Exploring options with
the Property & Facilities team and external providers for energy audits/site assessments to determine programme
of work
 Consortium bid to the Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Fund secured for Surrey £6.2m under Phase
1a and £3.1m under Phase 1b. To date, 64 measures have been installed on 54 properties in the borough to the
value of £471k
 Further funding of up to £350k earmarked for the borough under LAD2 to deliver additional energy efficiency
measures to low EPG rated homes.
Challenges:
 Action on the Council’s assets is a key part of the Action Plan, but progress has been impacted due to Covid 19
and capacity issues within the Property & Facilities team, although the latter is in the process of being addressed
 Short application and delivery timescales associated with Government Funding opportunities has limited the
progress that can be achieved on domestic retrofit
 A change in energy contract management company in September 2020 has led to difficulties in acquiring gas and
electricity consumption data prior to October 2020. Note 2020 data may not be representative due to changed
working practices at the Council resulting from Covid.
Next Steps:
 Continue conversations with Property & Facilities team / external providers in relation to future programme of work
 Continue to implement energy efficiency measures, including as part of the return to work / hybrid working
programme
1

Operational energy
use (kWh) for each
of the key Council
assets

Town Hall:
Baseline (Oct 2020 to
Mar 21):
Electricity: 187,696 kWh
Gas: 485,692 kWh
Depot:
Baseline (Oct 2020 to
Mar 21):
Electricity: 132,300 kWh
Gas: 267,324 kWh
Harlequin:
Baseline (Oct 2020 to
Mar 21):
Electricity: 120,288 kWh
Gas: 440,933 kWh
All other sites:
Baseline (Oct 2020 to
Mar 21):
Electricity: 356,784 kWh
Gas: 404,425 kWh



Continue to engage with Action Surrey, the Greater South East Energy Hub, other Surrey authorities and other
partners to secure additional funding for, and implement, domestic energy efficiency retrofit, including with social
housing providers via the Social Housing Decarbonisation fund
Note that a new action is proposed for 2021/22 onwards covering domestic retrofit
Promote behaviour changes to reduce operational energy consumption.
2020/21 Actions:
 Provide better information on finance/grants available to businesses and residents to implement energy efficiency
measures
Progress:
 Webpages updated with relevant information on finance/grants
Challenges:
 None identified
Next Steps:
 Keep web-content up to date
Energy & Carbon: Renewable Energy

Web pages reviewed
at least annually

Baseline (2020/21): Web
pages and content
created

Web pages reviewed
at least annually

Baseline (2020/21): Web
pages and content
created

Percentage of
renewable energy
(Council)

Renewable electricity
Baseline (2020/21): 33%

Promote the use of renewable energy through on/off-site generation and renewable tariff procurement

60

2020/21 Actions:
 Include information on renewable energy tariffs on the Council sustainability section of the website and via
Borough News, email newsletters etc. to encourage residents and businesses to sign-up
 Procure renewable energy across RBBC assets
Progress:
 Sustainability webpages have been updated to include information on energy saving, switching and renewable
tariffs
 The Council’s half-hourly (HH) electricity meters (one third of the Council’s total energy supply) is now on a green
tariff with Brook Green. Carbon from energy usage that is not yet on a green tariff (see ‘challenges’) is now offset.
 Solar Together group-buying scheme launched across Surrey in May. Reigate & Banstead had 816 registrations
(759 for solar PV and 57 for battery storage).
 Agreement reached to support Raven Housing Trust roll out its Net Zero programme to the tune of up to £1m
through waiver of clawback
Challenges:
 Not all council energy contracts have come up for renewal yet; so will need to wait until expiry of current contracts
before moving to green tariff:
- Non-half-hourly (NHH) (Corona): Sept 2023
- Gas (CNG): Oct 2022
Next Steps:
 Keep web-content up to date
 Monitor success of Solar Together scheme
 Continue to engage with Action Surrey, the Greater South East Energy Hub, other Surrey authorities and other
partners to secure additional funding for, and implement, domestic low carbon measures retrofit.
2

Non-renewable electricity
Baseline (2020/21): 13%
Non-renewable gas
Baseline (2020/21): 54%
Solar installations in
borough

Baseline (2019): 1,895
Year 1 (2020): 1,901

 Move Council energy contracts to green tariff when possible; in the mean-time explore opportunities for energy
minimisation / on-site renewables
Note that a new action is proposed for 2021/22 onwards covering domestic retrofit

Energy & Carbon: Low Carbon Transport
Reduce carbon emissions associated with transport through minimising travel and reliance on personal car

61

2020/21 Actions:
 Use planning conditions and S106 agreements to secure car club provisions at new large-scale developments
(ongoing activity).
 Engage with Local Transport Authority (Surrey County Council (SCC)) and private transport provider to improve
frequency/reliance of public transport to increase overall uptake of public transport (ongoing activity)
 Highlight the reduced-price membership offer to Surrey residents for the Enterprise Car Club which is currently
outlined on the Surrey website.
 Encourage uptake of car-pooling from residents and staff through better communicating available car sharing
platforms.
Progress:
 Development Management Plan (DMP) encourages initiatives such as carpooling and car clubs; these
opportunities are further explained in the draft Climate Change and Sustainable Construction Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) and included in the draft Sustainability Checklist
 Ongoing engagement with Surrey County Council on their Local Transport Plan (LTP) 4 which has a strong focus
on sustainable transport
 Information included on sustainability webpages on car sharing and personal car use
 The Sustainability Team has provided advice in relation to designing appropriate measures into Council-led
developments, including Woodhatch Crematorium
Challenges:
 Covid restrictions have limited the Council’s ability to encourage the uptake of car-pooling and use of public
transport - these actions will be rolled forward as a result
 Difficulty in establishing performance indicators due to lack of third-party information
Next Steps:
 Keep web-content up to date
 Launch Climate Change and Sustainable Construction SPD and Checklist in 2021/22
 Await outcome of LTP4 consultation and continue to engage with SCC on wider sustainable transport initiatives

3

Web pages reviewed
at least annually

Baseline (2020/21): Web
pages and content
created

Up to date planning
policy and guidance in
place

Baseline (2020/21):
Policy up to date and
guidance in development

Uptake of car-pooling
amongst residents

Data currently not
available

Levels of public
transport usage
and/or investment

Data currently not
available

Improve the uptake of electric vehicles across the Borough

62

2020/21 Actions:
 Ensure that the provision of electric vehicle charging points are secured for new developments as per the DMP
TAP 1 'Access, parking and servicing' policy and SCC's 'Vehicular and Cycle Parking Guidance' January 2018 and
Office for Low Emissions Vehicles (OLEV) (when implemented) (ongoing activity)
 Update/upgrade existing charging points (e.g. Wray Lane) when it needs replacing (ongoing activity)
 Install charging points in Council's car parks and across the Council's owned assets (ongoing activity)
 Work with SCC to implement their 'Electrical Vehicle Strategy' (ongoing activity)
 Explore options to encourage fully electric taxis via Council's licencing policies and potentially incentivise their take
up through subsidising of the licence fee.
 Continue to transition the Council's fleet to be fully electric, measures to include:
- Procuring fully electric cars, vans and other vehicles
- Procuring electric sit on mowers
- Procuring electric refuse lorries. Alternatively, existing vehicles could be retrofitted with an electric motor
Progress:
 Provision for EV in the DMP for all new development to incorporate electric vehicle (EV) charging points, also
included in the draft Climate Change and Sustainable Construction SPD and draft Sustainability Checklist
 Business related opportunities for installation of EV charging infrastructure promoted through new Sustainable
Business Network
 Charging point at Wray Lane upgraded
 External funding secured towards installation of 6 charge points in Banstead Car Park; project initiated to establish
programme of works to roll EV charging points out to other Council owned sites, including commissioning of
evidence from Energy Saving Trust
 Ongoing discussions with SCC (via monthly meetings) about roll out of on-street EV charging infrastructure
 Five licenses have been made available for electric hackney carriages; ongoing work to look at other ways of
ensuring more sustainable taxis
 Moved from 300l to 150l fuel tank HGVs to increase efficiency; moved from Euro 5 to Euro 6 standard.
 Current low-carbon fleet has 13 low-carbon vehicles:
- Mayoral car – 1 hybrid electric car
- Parking team – electric 2 cars; 2 electric vans
- Green Spaces 1 electric van
- Pool – 3 hybrid cars; 3 electric cars

4

Number of public EV
charging points
available in the
borough

Baseline (2020/21):
29 as of July 2021; 10 in
council car parks

Number of plug-in
cars & LGVs licenced
in the borough

Baseline (2020):
712 plug-in cars & LGVs
as of Q1 (Jan-Mar) 2020

Number of on-street
charging points
available in borough

Number of low-carbon
hackney carriages
licenced in the
borough

Progress (2021):
1,037 plug-in cars &
LGVs as of Q1 (Jan-Mar)
2021
Baseline (2020/21): 0

Baseline (2020/21): 0

- Stores – 1 electric forklift
Electric bin lorry trialled; continuing to explore options due to concerns around range
Fleet Replacement Strategy has been created and reviewed by the Sustainability Team, increased focus on
sustainability issues, consultation with sustainability team over petrol/diesel purchases.
Challenges:
 SCC is focusing on trialling on-street EV charging in the west of the County, on-street EV charging trials are not
expected in Reigate & Banstead until 2022.
 Despite having been made available, electric hackney carriage licence opportunities have not yet been taken up
 Information is not currently available about total number of privately owned/operated EV charging points
 Need to ensure infrastructure (charging, etc.) is in place for electric vehicles at the depot & other locations
Next Steps:
 Launch Climate Change and Sustainable Construction SPD and Checklist in 2021/22
 Continue to promote EV charging opportunities to businesses
 Finalise plans for rollout of EV charging points across Council-owned sites
 Continue to explore ways to reduce diesel hackney carriages and move to electric fleet
 Full fleet review by Energy Saving Trust (EST) in place for end of this tax year (early 2022)
 Continue to work with Fleet team to transition council fleet to electric / low carbon solutions; await outcome of EST
review



63

Proportion of fleet that
is electric

Baseline (2020/21):
10%

Proportion of
residents
walking/cycling to
work or to run local
errands

Data currently
unavailable

Encourage the uptake of walking and cycling
2020/21 Actions:
 Collaborate with Surrey CC to develop a Local Cycling and Walking Plan and implement pedestrian and cyclingfriendly measures (ongoing activity)
 Improve information available to residents and local businesses advising on the location of cycle storage, cycle
hire, and cycle routes within the borough
Progress:
 Information included on webpages around cycle routes in the borough
 Surrey CC’s Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) has been commissioned and work is underway
 Ongoing engagement with Surrey CC on LTP4
 The Sustainability Team has provided advice in relation to designing appropriate measures into Council-led
developments, including Woodhatch Crematorium
Challenges:
 Surrey CC have very limited data on performance indicators
Next Steps:
 Await outcome of consultation on LTP4
 Continue to work with Surrey CC on LCWIP development and implementation

5

ANNEX 1: Environmental Sustainability Strategy Action Plan – 2020/21 Progress, challenges and next steps

Performance
indicator

Baseline and progress

Total municipal
household waste
arising at borough
level

Baseline (2019/20):
52,766

Web pages reviewed
at least annually

Baseline (2020/21): Web
pages and content
created

Low Impact Consumption: Waste Reduction
Reduce waste through avoiding it in the first place and promoting reuse opportunities

64

2020/21 Actions:
 Continue to locate clothes and textile banks in strategic locations across the Borough prioritising the re-use of the
items collected (ongoing activity)
 Work with cafes, restaurants and takeaways to reduce their single-use plastic (SUP) consumption i.e. targeting
zero Styrofoam, preferring compostable options and gradually moving towards reusable take-away box scheme
(ongoing activity)
 Publicise better the water re-fill network within the Borough and sign-up additional businesses as refill stations
across the Borough
 Update waste section on the dedicated sustainability page of the Council's website to bring together information
about the various waste reduction initiatives
 Eliminate single use plastic (SUP) within the Council's operated assets (ongoing action)
 Continue to purchase IT equipment from a specific brand and stick to the same models to allow for the use of
spare parts from units which no longer work to be used in other units to prolong their life (ongoing action)
 Investigate the potential remanufacturing options for furniture when renewing furniture (ongoing action)
Progress:
 Information on waste reduction included on webpages, in spring borough newsletter and in business e-bulletin.
Information about the water refill network also included in the sustainability webpages
 The Council collects the most textiles through banks out of all boroughs in Surrey (36 own sites with banks); 300
tonnes of textile per year
 Some progress has been made reducing SUP within the council
 Currently one third of IT stock is decommissioned each year (after 4-5 years in use); equipment is cleared of data,
WEE tested and recycled by a third-party company. Approximately 440 ‘specific brand’ (HP) laptops in use, all
with low power rating. Servers at Town Hall uses 2 small units (virtual servers, lower impact than full server
room).
Challenges:
 Surrey Environment Partnership advise that it’s SUP Strategy stalled due to lack of resource/capacity to
implement by councils; therefore alternative approaches will need to be identified.
 Covid lockdowns have resulted in increases in total municipal waste collected
 Need to support struggling businesses post-Covid i.e. ensure that sustainability issues are addressed but for
initiatives not to be so onerous that they impact on the ability to recover from the pandemic

6

Progress (2020/21):
55,251 tonnes



Progress with reducing SUP has been limited due to Covid 19 / capacity issues, although the latter is in the
process of being addressed. Similarly, Covid 19 has impacted on activity in relation to promoting the water re-fill
network
 Due to limited progress, a baseline has not yet been established for SUPs, nor a mechanism to measure
reductions
 No suitable mechanism currently exists for measuring total waste generated by council offices and facilities.
Next Steps:
 Keep webpage content up to date and promote recycling through communications activity
 Work more post-lockdown to support businesses with SUP reduction and promote the water refill network,
reflecting provisions in the forthcoming Environment Bill
 Continue conversations with services across the Council to reduce our own use of SUPs
Conversations with IT suggest sustainability measures have been taken as far as practical at present; continue to
explore opportunities as part of ongoing ICT investment programme

65

Facilitate recycling to maximise value of non-avoidable waste
2020/21 Actions:
 Continue to roll out recycling to all flats within the borough to improve the recyclable waste collection service
provided compared to the service historically delivered (paper and card only) (ongoing activity)
 Continue to compile and report recycling rate for the Borough collections to disseminate performance to residents
and encourage positive behaviour change (ongoing activity)
 Work with Surrey Environment Partnership (SEP) in exploring the potential for implementation of services to reuse
or recycle difficult products: e.g. nappies, sanitary pads, paint (ongoing activity)
 Trial the provision of additional recycling bins alongside general waste bins in public spaces to facilitate waste
segregation e.g. Earlswood Lakes where 'big belly bins' for general refuse have recently been installed. If
successful, look to extend the use of recycling bins. As part of the trial ensure that appropriate communication is
disseminated to ensure that it is clear what can be recycled
Progress:
 After the initial impacts of lockdown in Q1, the last 3 quarters of 2020/21 saw a strong recycling performance
within the borough - the best results recorded for each of these periods by the Council
 While the rollout of the full recycling service to flats has been suspended since March 2020 due to Covid-19, 500
properties have been completed in July 2021 and all new build flats and houses have been provided with the full
recycling service
 Communication on recycling continues to be provided by the Council’s Communications Team, supported by
SEP; the annual user guide was provided to all properties in November 2020 and the same is scheduled for 2021.
This includes information on the SEP website about hard to recycle items (linked to from our own)
Challenges:
 Recycling in green spaces difficult due to contamination arising from location of bins
 Covid has impacted on some aspects of recycling, including roll-out to flats and commercial waste streams
 Recycling from businesses during 2020/21 has been hit hard, as many businesses closed or reduced output,
evident from the reduced quantity of cardboard collected from commercial clients
Next Steps:
 A program to improve recycling centre bins is proposed this year
7

Total waste / SUPs
generated by Council

Data currently
unavailable

Proportion of
household waste
recycled (boroughlevel)

Baseline (2019/.20):
54.3%
Progress (2020/21):
53.2%





Explore solutions for encouraging recycling in green spaces, e.g. signage around taking waste home to recycle,
working with cafes on closed-loop recycling schemes, etc.
Look at promoting options beyond SEP (such as Terracycle)
Await Environment Bill & proposals from DEFRA around waste (including commercial waste) to inform future
Council activity in relation to recycling

Promote anaerobic digestion and composting
2020/21 Actions:
 Work with SEP to investigate preferable options for the disposal of organic waste and improve communication to
residents around food waste with the aim of increasing the volume of food waste collected across the borough
(ongoing action)
Progress:
 Garden waste available to all residents (subscription service); compost bin and food waste campaigns run by SEP
Challenges:
 Initial Covid lockdown impacted Council’s ability to collect garden waste in Q1
Next Steps:
 Organic waste collection & processing included in upcoming Environment Bill; this will inform our future approach
in this area

Proportion of
household waste
composted or
anaerobically digested
(borough level)

Baseline (2019/.20):
28.1%

Proportion of waste
collected treated
within the UK

Data currently
unavailable

Water consumption
per capita (boroughwide)

Baseline (2020/21):
153.7 litres per property
per day (annual average
as of Aug 2020)

Progress (2020/21):
25.1%

Encourage waste treatment locally to minimise transport emissions

66

2020/21 Actions:
 Endeavour to keep waste streams treated as locally as possible or at least within the UK/Europe (ongoing action)
Progress:
 Many of the waste streams are currently processed locally and within the UK, as detailed here
Challenges:
 Limitations on data available for performance indicators
Next Steps:
 Continue to work to ensure waste and recycling is treated as locally as possible
 Await outcome of Environment Bill around changes to waste collection & processing
Low Impact Consumption: Water Efficiency
Reduce potable water consumption through a combination of efficiency and potable water substitution measures
2020/21 Actions:
 Work in partnership with Sutton & East Surrey Water (SESW) to provide residents with easy to use water saving
measures to install, e.g. hippo cistern displacer; flow restrictors; garden water butts (ongoing action)
 Engage with SESW to support them where possible in achieving their industry wide leak reduction targets
(ongoing action)
 Advise residents (via Council's website) on minimum water efficiency standards to achieve when considering
home refurbishment projects (e.g. changing kitchens/bathrooms)

8



67

Investigate the installation of low flow fixtures and fittings for sanitaryware (including toilets, wash hand basins,
showers and kitchen taps) for key Council assets (Harlequin, Town Hall and Earlswood) as part of any upgrade
works (ongoing action)
 Consider rainwater harvesting or greywater recycling as part of any key upgrades undertaken by the Council to
their assets (ongoing action)
Progress:
 Webpages updated to include water efficiency advice, funding opportunities (details of ‘Every Drop’ fund shared
with community groups), water-saving visits, water calculator, etc. Also education outreach opportunities via ‘flowzone.co.uk’ website (also on the Council’s webpages)
 Efficiency measures on council owned and operated properties are being undertaken on planned and
refurbishment works as and when they arise Provisions for water efficiency included in the Climate Change &
Sustainability SPD, referenced in checklist
Challenges:
 Progress on the Council’s sites impacted due to Covid 19 / capacity issues, but latter in the process of being
addressed
Next Steps:
 Keep website content up to date
 Continue to work with SESW to reduce water consumption across the borough
 Launch Climate Change and Sustainable Construction SPD and Checklist in 2021/22
 The Council will look at how to develop initiatives as part of return to work/hybrid working programme; continue
conversations with the Property & Facilities team to determine way forward
Low Impact Consumption: Responsible Sourcing

Web pages reviewed
at least annually

Baseline (2020/21): Web
pages and content
created

Water consumption at
council level

Town Hall:
Baseline (2020/21):
3,108 M3
Depot:
Baseline (2020/21):
3,305 M3
Harlequin:
Baseline (2020/21):
12,182 M3
All other sites:
Baseline (2020/21):
36,621 M3

Proportion of councilprocured goods that
are recycled content /
toxic / FSC or PEFC /
Fairtrade

Baseline (2019/20):
34% of office products
are environmentally
friendly

Maximise the use of materials and products that are produced responsibly (i.e. environmentally and socially)
2020/21 Actions:
 Prefer products that incorporate recycled content for key purchases (e.g. furniture, stationary, paper, paint)
(ongoing action)
 Ensure that all timber products procured across the Council (inc. paper products such as files, books, pads and
envelopes) are FSC certified
Progress:
 Office supplies provided by Lyreco for Town Hall, Earlswood Depot, Harlequin Theatre and community centres.
Paper used is Lyreco’s own brand (Eco Label, 90gsm). Core stationery products reviewed early 2021, moved from
57% to 67% of sales from Lyreco environmentally friendly range. Percentage of actual units from 34% to 50%
Challenges:
 Limited progress on the wider range of products across Council’s sites due to Covid 19 implications
Next Steps:
 Continue to work directly with Lyreco to transition to low social/environmental impact solutions; explore other
opportunities as part of return to work/hybrid working programme

9

Progress (2020/21):
50% of office products
are environmentally
friendly

Encouraging healthy food products manufactured under adequate social and environmental standards
2020/21 Actions:
 Include healthier options within the vending machines located in assets operated by the Council (ongoing action)
 Procure Fairtrade products for key office consumables (coffee, tea, sugar, hot chocolate)
Progress:
 N/A
Challenges:
 No progress has been made on these actions due to Covid 19 restrictions on use of Council buildings/ capacity
issues
 A baseline has not yet been established for quantities of healthy/ethical food, nor any mechanism to measure
reductions
Next Steps:
 Explore opportunities to provide healthier / Fairtrade options as part of return to work/hybrid working programme

Proportion of
Fairtrade / healthy
products procured

Data currently
unavailable

ANNEX 1: Environmental Sustainability Strategy Action Plan – 2020/21 Progress, challenges and next steps

Performance
indicator

Baseline and progress

Tree cover
percentage

Data currently
unavailable

Number of trees
planted on new
developments

Data currently
unavailable

Natural Environment: Ecological Enhancement
Improve tree cover across the borough

68

2020/21 Actions:
 Increase tree cover within the borough (ongoing action):
- Plant more trees with a focus on those with a native/wildlife value
- Improve management of existing woodland in council ownership to promote healthy regeneration and new
tree growth
- Review the grant/funding options available and if possible, establish a partnership with the Woodland Trust to
help implement any tree planting on land identified as suitable
- Any trees that have to be uprooted to accommodate new developments to be relocated elsewhere in the
Borough
- Integrate tree planting initiatives as part of the Council’s 'Green Infrastructure Strategy Action Plan' for
restoring habitats at Council-owned strategic countryside assets where environmentally appropriate
- Explore options for, and support, community tree planting initiatives
- Investigate options for providing local carbon offsetting for third parties through tree planting or other
measures
Progress:
 181 trees planted by the council within the borough over the financial year 2020-2021; Greenspaces team
continues to manage Council owned woodland to ensure it is heathy and sustainable

10





Submitted a consortium bid via Surrey CC to the DEFRA Local Authority Treescapes Fund
Discussions in progress to develop a green spaces strategy/action plan around planting etc.
Ongoing conversations with Surrey CC (which has set a 1.2million trees by 2030 target), Surrey Wildlife Trust,
Woodland Trust & CPRE around green infrastructure and tree planting across the borough
 Ongoing work with community groups – tree planting guide has been produced with workshop sessions delivered,
and a local network of interested groups being developed. Guide includes explaining the value of planting the right
trees in the right places and the need for ongoing care and management
Challenges:
 Difficulty in attaining data on planting associated with new developments
 Difficulty in getting robust, up-to-date data on total tree cover within the borough
Next Steps:
 Continue to support local community groups to bring forward tree planting initiatives and continue discussions with
Green Spaces team, Surrey CC & charities about other planting opportunities
 Await outcome of Treescapes Fund bid and implement proposals if successful

Number of new trees
planted on council
land

Baseline (2020/21):
181 trees planted by
council within the
borough

Area of soft landscape
created by council

Baseline (2020/21):
128 square metres of soft
landscaping created /
improved

Area of planting by
council

Baseline (2020/21):
3,906 square metres of
pollinator and/or native
species planting

Increase the area of soft landscape valuable to wildlife across the Borough

69

2020/21 Actions:
 Identify areas of disused land which can be utilised for greening projects and implement projects where
appropriate (viable and deliverable) (ongoing action)
Progress:
 128 square metres of soft landscaping created / improved by the council over the financial year 2020-2021
 Discussions in progress to develop a green spaces strategy/action plan around planting etc.
 Ongoing conversations with Surrey CC, Surrey Wildlife Trust, Woodland Trust & CPRE around supporting and
enhancing green infrastructure across the borough
 Communities are being supported to explore the potential of sites for green infrastructure networks and hedgerow
renewal in their local areas, working with local tree wardens, the Tree Council and Wildlife Trust
Challenges:
 None identified
Next Steps:
 Continue discussions with Green Spaces team, Surrey CC & charities in relation to soft landscaping and green
infrastructure opportunities
 Await Environment Bill and requirements around Biodiversity Net Gain and Local Nature Recovery Networks
 Explore viability of a project linking up various projects (e.g. community projects, partner projects, council projects)
to form a broader green infrastructure programme
Increase the amount of native species that attract pollinators
2020/21 Actions:
 Plant pollinator friendly species in areas managed by the Council e.g. by managing a series of verges as 'late-cut'
verges allowing the flowers to set seed before being cut or introducing pollinator-friendly seed mixes in areas of
grassland around new developments (ongoing action)
Progress:
 3,906 square metres of pollinator and/or native species planting by the council over the financial year 2020-2021
11

Challenges:
 None identified
Next Steps:
 Biodiversity planning guidance due to be prepared by the council’s Planning team
 Continue to manage a range of verges as ‘late cut’
Natural Environment: Sustainable Drainage Systems
Mimic the natural water cycle to reduce surface water run off

70

2020/21 Actions:
 Collaborate with Surrey County Council as part of their 'Surrey Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Objective
Action Plan, February 2017' to increase the uptake of SuDS on infrastructure projects (ongoing action)
 Minimise hard impermeable surfaces, alternatively install or retrofit permeable surfaces across the Council's
owned assets as part of planned renewal and upgrades e.g. the use of permeable paving at Council owned and
run car parks (ongoing)
 Install or retrofit soft SuDS (sustainable drainage systems) as part of planned renewal and upgrades across the
Council's owned assets e.g. bioretention area, swales etc.(ongoing)
Progress:
 Measures included in relation to sustainable drainage the draft Climate Change and Sustainable Construction SPD
and draft Sustainability Checklist
 The Sustainability Team has provided advice in relation to designing appropriate measures into Council led
developments, including Woodhatch Crematorium and Merstham Recreation Ground
Challenges:
 Data currently unavailable for permeable surfaces in new developments
Next Steps:
 Launch Climate Change and Sustainable Construction SPD and Checklist in 2021/22
 Continue to provide advice in relation to sustainable drainage on developments taking place on Council land
Natural Environment: Environmental impact and pollution prevention

Area of permeable
surface created in
new developments

Data currently
unavailable

Area of permeable
surfaces created by
council

Baseline (2020/21):
0

Annual air quality
results (3-year rolling
average) for Nitrogen
Dioxide (µg m-3)

Baseline (2019):
Reigate Background
16.5
Reigate High St
37.2
Redhill Background
15.4
Redhill Marketfield Way
30.9
Horley A23 Brighton Road
44.3
Horley The Crescent
26.8
Banstead Background
15.8
Banstead Drift Bridge

Limit negative impacts to the wider environment i.e. air, water, ground, habitat loss
2020/21 Actions:
 Work alongside SCC to investigate the suitability of implementing measures to limit unnecessary acceleration and
deceleration and reduce engine idling (ongoing action)
 Continue to minimise the use of glyphosate (ongoing action) by: employing the use of hand removal in public
spaces such as playgrounds, schools and town centres; investigating the use of hot foam or steam as
alternatives; liaising with other authorities who have already implemented measures to go glyphosate free
Progress:
 Engagement with SCC in relation to the content of its LTP4
 The Greenspaces team have reduced their use of glyphosate as far as possible; currently exploring other means
of weed control (such as hand-removal) and only using glyphosate as a last resort
Challenges:
12



28.5
Hooley Background
15.8
Hooley A23
58.8
Progress (2020):
Reigate Background
15
Reigate High St
33.8
Redhill Background
14.9
Redhill Marketfield Way
28.3
Horley A23 Brighton Road
39.4
Horley The Crescent
22.7
Banstead Background
14.4
Banstead Drift Bridge
25.7
Hooley Background
13.9
Hooley A23
52.4

Signage for switching off engines has been trialled previously with limited success (no discernible drop in air
pollutants). Switching off engine may produce more pollution on older models.
Next Steps:
 Await SCC LTP4 and explore other opportunities to work with SCC to reduce polluting behaviour by drivers
 Continue to explore ways to reduce the amount of glyphosate used

71
Annual amount of
glyphosate used

13

Baseline (2020/21):
699 litres

ANNEX 1: Environmental Sustainability Strategy Action Plan – 2020/21 Progress, challenges and next steps

Performance
indicator

Baseline and progress

Effective Implementation: Communications
Provide informative accessible material for staff, residents and businesses on how to reduce energy and increase renewable energy at the Borough level and explain what
the Council is doing itself

72

2020/21 Actions:
 Develop a campaign around the Council’s sustainability plan to inform and encourage behaviour change in staff,
residents, businesses and partners. A number of key messages and calls to action will be created
 Set up on the Council's webpage a dedicated sustainability section which will provide tangible solutions to enable
residents and businesses to reduce their environmental impacts
 Use of case studies to demonstrate how local businesses and communities have improved their sustainability
credentials (e.g. EV charging, installation of solar panels)
 Develop a campaign around the sustainability plan to inform and encourage behaviour change in staff. A number
of key messages and calls to action will be created
Progress:
 Two-page article released in Spring Borough Newsletter, with follow-up posts on social media
 Social media communications on national and international events, including World Environment Day, Plastic-Free
Day, reducing litter and community tree-planting
 Work in development to deliver a resident’s survey in 2021 to ask questions relating to sustainability, including
how the Council is performing regarding sustainability
 Webpages have been fully updated with 6 main categories (home, business, community, school, health, travel)
 Sustainable business network established to share best practice with large businesses within the borough (bimonthly meetings)
 SMEs engaged on sustainability issues via the Council’s business newsletters and other networking activity
 Several internal communications articles on sustainability released on the Council’s intranet pages; ‘bite-sized’
training delivered to staff in July.
 Articles also published in members’ e-bulletin, with a schedule agreed for further communications. New member
induction video on sustainability created and rolled out.
 Carbon Literacy Training completed by Sustainability Officer to determine suitability for training across the council
Challenges:
 None identified
Next Steps:
 Continue work on resident’s survey, launch later in 2021
 Continue to update & evolve webpages and implement external communications activity
 Continue bi-monthly sustainable business network meetings and promote other initiatives such as the forthcoming
LoCASE programme
 Training for officers in Carbon Literacy Training for later in 2021, with manager / member training planned
 Dedicated page for sustainability planned for the Council’s intranet pages
 Continue with communications and training across internal channels
14

Web pages reviewed
at least annually

Baseline (2020/21): Web
pages and content
created

Resident survey
delivered annually
(% residents that
agree the Council acts
in an environmentally
responsible way)

Baseline (2020/21):
Wave 1: 43% residents
agree the Council acts in
an environmentally
responsible way
Progress:
Wave 2: 47% residents
agree the Council acts in
an environmentally
responsible way

Effective Implementation: Partnership Working
Work with partner agencies to identify shared objectives and opportunities for cooperation

73

2020/21 Actions:
 Communication and coordination with other public sector agencies, and relevant private and/or
voluntary/community sector elements to address joint environmental sustainability objectives (ongoing action)
Progress:
 Ongoing collaboration has taken place across various aspects of the action plan, including work with:
- Surrey CC, and working with other districts and boroughs:
 Funding Bids (e.g. Treescapes Fund, Empty Properties, Green Homes Grant: LAD 1a and 1b)
 Studies (e.g. Buro Happold tree cover and renewables study)
 Group-buying schemes (Solar Together)
 Policy (e.g. LTP4, LCWIP, Greener Futures Delivery Plan)
- Local Enterprise Partnerships and associated organisations (Greater South East Energy Hub: on Green
Homes Grant: LAD2)
- Advisory services (e.g. Action Surrey on Green Homes Grant: LAD1a and b, Energy Saving Trust on fleet and
electric vehicles)
- Charities (e.g. Surrey Wildlife Trust (green infrastructure), Woodland Trust, Tree Council (planting/planning))
- Businesses (e.g. via the Sustainable Business Network, SES Water on water consumption reduction)
- Town and Parish Councils (alignment of priorities and activities and sharing best practice)
- The health sector (‘Growing health together’ network)
- Community groups (on tree planting, energy efficiency, etc.)
Challenges: None identified
Next Steps:
 Continue to collaborate with public and private sector partners and community groups
Effective Implementation: Procurement

N/A

Ensure sustainability is taken into consideration as part of the procurement process
2020/21 Actions:
 Prepare sustainability opportunities section to be incorporated into specifications that are then incorporated into
tender documentations
 Devise sustainable procurement tools to assess tenders. This will include sustainability questionnaires as part of
the PQQ (Pre-Qualification Questionnaire) and ITT (Invitation To Tender) and the use of a balanced scorecard
Progress:
 ITT includes a section on what weighting should be applied (e.g. 30% cost, 70% quality, etc. – determined by
dept. procuring). Work in progress to include wording in ITT around sustainability
Challenges:
 Strategic (council-wide) procurement review has been delayed due to resourcing pressures
Next Steps:
 Continue to work with Procurement Team to develop sustainability considerations in the procurement process and
provide support to individual services in respect of specific procurement activities
15

Sustainability
requirements included
in corporate
Procurement Strategy

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

74

ANNEX 2: Environmental Sustainability Strategy Action Plan – Additional Proposed Actions

Proposed Performance indicator

Energy & Carbon: Energy Minimisation

75

Promote behaviour changes to reduce operational energy consumption.
New 2021/22 Actions:
 Work with partner organisations, residents, businesses and communities throughout the borough to encourage and facilitate
the retrofit of homes to become more energy efficient (Ongoing)
Challenges:
 The Council has limited powers to mandate action in this area, however reducing domestic emissions is a crucial step if the
borough is to become net zero by 2050
Inclusion of scope 3 emissions in investigations and reduction initiatives
New 2021/22 Actions:
 Undertake work to better understand organisational scope 3 emissions and identify reduction initiatives relating to council
operations.
Challenges:
 While scope 3 emissions make up the majority of the council’s carbon emissions, they are more difficult to quantify as they are
largely beyond direct control and relate to upstream and downstream emissions, employee commuting, etc. Note that scope 3
emissions are not included within the Council 2030 carbon neutral target

Percentage of homes in the borough
that have been retrofitted via
schemes and projects promoted by
the Council; BEIS annual Local
Authority CO2 estimates

Year on year reduction from baseline
(to be established)

Energy & Carbon: Renewable Energy
Promote the use of renewable energy through on/off-site generation and renewable tariff procurement
New 2021/22 Actions:
 Work with partner organisation, residents, businesses and communities to encourage and facilitate the retrofit of homes with
low carbon technologies (Ongoing)
Challenges
 The Council has limited powers to mandate action in this area, however reducing domestic emissions is a crucial step if the
borough is to become net zero by 2050

Percentage of homes in the borough
retrofitted via schemes and projects
promoted by the Council; BEIS
annual Local Authority CO2
estimates

Low Impact Consumption: Waste Reduction
Facilitate recycling to maximise value of non-avoidable waste
New 2021/22 Actions:
 Continue to develop the Council’s waste and recycling service taking into account the new requirements anticipated to be
introduced by the Environment Bill and associated secondary legislation (ongoing)
Challenges:
 The Council will need to ensure it has appropriate resources to deliver additional recycling service provision

Covered by existing performance
indicators within the Waste service

Effective Implementation: Communications

76

Provide informative accessible material for staff, residents and businesses on how to reduce energy and increase renewable energy at the Borough level and explain what
the Council is doing itself
New 2021/22 Actions:
Response rate for employee survey

The Sustainability Team will undertake work to engage council staff further, including:
sustainability questions & progress
Providing guidance around 'green working' to support council employees in tackling sustainability at work, covering issues on metrics (to be determined)
such as:
 Commuting using active transport (including how to access to Cycle to Work scheme, etc.)
 Saving energy (working from home and in the office)
 Reducing waste through less printing, etc.
Developing and delivering a staff survey to determine awareness / attitude / behaviours
In addition to this new action, it is proposed that a number of completed actions be consolidated as a single action.
Completed actions: Set up on the Council's webpage a dedicated sustainability section which will provide tangible
solutions to enable residents and businesses to reduce their environmental impacts
Provide better information on finance/grants available to businesses and residents to implement energy efficiency
measures
Include information on renewable energy tariffs on the Council sustainability section of the website and via Borough News,
email newsletters etc to encourage residents and businesses to sign-up
Highlight the reduced-price membership offer to Surrey residents for the Enterprise Car Club which is currently outlined on
the Surrey website
Web pages reviewed at least
Encourage uptake of car-pooling from residents and staff through better communicating available car sharing platforms
annually
Update waste section on the dedicated sustainability page of the Council's website to bring together information about the
various waste reduction initiatives
Signpost to or facilitate borrowing and renting one-off purchases (e.g. DIY, gardening equipment etc...) e.g. through
incorporation of available services on the Council's sustainability page
Advise residents (via Council's website) on minimum water efficiency standards to achieve when considering home
refurbishment projects (e.g. changing kitchens/bathrooms)
The new consolidated actions will be to:
 Maintain, review and regularly update the Council’s sustainability webpages to provide a suite of information about the three
Progress in relation to specific
ES Strategy schemes and action that residents, businesses and communities can take (Ongoing)
sustainability questions (to be
 Plan, create and deliver a survey in 2021 for a cross-section of residents within the borough, to gather information relating to
determined) within the resident’s
awareness, attitudes and behaviours in relation to sustainability; run the survey annually to track progress and change across
survey
a consistent set of questions (ongoing)
Challenges:
 None identified

NEW OBJECTIVE PROPOSED: Provide informative accessible material for staff, residents and businesses on how to prepare and respond to extreme weather events
related to climate change and explain what the Council is doing itself
New 2021/22 Actions:
Web pages reviewed at least
The sustainability content on the Council’s webpages is currently focused on matters related to climate change mitigation
annually
 Update webpages to include more information and advice relating to climate change adaptation, such as limiting exposure to
or impact from flood damage, keeping cool during heatwaves, etc. This should link to the relevant pages relating to emergency
planning where relevant.
Challenges:
 None identified
Effective Implementations: Partnership Working

77

Work with partner agencies to identify shared objectives and opportunities for cooperation
New 2021/22 Actions:
 Alone and in partnership with other organisations, continue to lobby government to ensure local authorities have the powers
and resources to facilitate change
Challenges:
 None identified

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

78

Agenda Item 6
SIGNED OFF BY

Head of Paid Service

AUTHOR

Tom Borer, Policy Officer

TELEPHONE

Tel: 01737 276717

EMAIL

tom.borer@reigatebanstead.gov.uk

TO

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

DATE

Thursday, 21 October 2021

EXECUTIVE
MEMBER

Portfolio Holder for
Investment and Companies

KEY DECISION REQUIRED

N

WARDS AFFECTED

(All Wards);

SUBJECT

Companies Performance Update - Autumn 2021

Recommendations
1. To note the Autumn 2021 Companies Performance Update, as set out in the
report, and to make any observations for consideration by the Commercial
Ventures Executive Sub-Committee.
Reasons For Recommendations
To consider the performance of companies owned or part-owned by the Council, as of
Autumn 2021
Executive Summary
This report provides an overview of the performance of the companies currently owned, or
part-owned, by the Council.
The operational companies currently consist of Greensand Holdings Limited, Horley
Business Park Development LLP, and Pathway for Care Limited.
Two additional companies, RBBC Limited and RBBC Housing – Independent Living (the
Council’s Community Benefit Society) are inactive.
A new company, Camelia Close (Tadworth) Residents Management Company was
established in May 2021. This company is not a Council-owned company, however it relates
to a council project therefore is included in this report for completeness.
Greensand Holdings is considered to be performing in line with expectations, Horley
Business Park Development LLP is not currently considered to be performing in line with

79

Agenda Item 6
expectations, and judgement is pending on the performance of Pathway for Care Limited.
It is as yet considered to be too soon to offer a judgement Camelia Close Residents
Management Company due to its recent establishment, but there are not anticipated to be
any issues at this time.
Additional commercially sensitive supporting information is detailed in the exempt report
set out in the Part 2 section of this agenda.
Statutory Powers
1.

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 gives local authorities a general power of
competence that enables them to do anything that a private individual is entitled to
do, as long as it is not expressly prohibited by other legislation. Section 4 of the same
Act directs that anything which is done for purely commercial purposes should be
done though a company structure.

2.

Companies and LLPs are governed by the Companies Act 2006; The Limited Liability
Partnerships Act 2000; and The Limited Liability Partnerships Regulations 2001 (as
amended principally by the Limited Liability Partnerships (Application of Companies
Act 2006) Regulations 2009 and Community Benefit Societies are also governed by
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014.

Background
3.

Local Authorities face ongoing financial challenges in recent years, due to a
combination of reductions in central government funding, and increasing demand on
services in many areas. Whilst Reigate and Banstead Borough Council has
maintained a generally strong financial position, it remains essential for the Council
to generate income in addition to its statutory share of business rates and council
tax funding, if it is to continue to deliver and maintain the high level of services it
currently provides and has planned to continue to provide as part of the Corporate
Plan 2020-2025.

4.

Whilst the Council pursued commercial activities before 2019, there was a
Commercial Governance Review in 2018. Following that review, the activities have
been overseen by the Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee, and
integrated within the Council’s wider Service and Financial Planning.

5.

These activities take place within financial limits set out as part of the Council’s
approved revenue budget and capital programme.

6.

The Council’s holdings in companies represent one element of this commercial
and investment activity, governed by the established commercial framework, along
with relevant company regulations.

7.

To support good governance of the Council’s companies, the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and the Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee receive regular
updates on the performance of these companies.

8.

The last full update was considered in Spring 2021.

Key Information
9.

As identified in the Executive Summary, the Council currently owns or part-owns, or

80

Agenda Item 6
has an interest in four operational companies. These are Greensand Holdings
Limited, Horley Business Park Development LLP, Pathway for Care Limited, and
Camelia Close (Tadworth) Residents Management Company Limited.
10. Greensand Holdings Limited is currently considered to be performing overall in line
with the Council’s objectives and expectations. Additional information is currently
being sought from Pathway for Care Limited and the decision on the adequacy of
its performance is undetermined, pending receipt of that information. Horley
Business Park Development LLP is not currently considered to be performing in line
with the Council objectives due to activity being limited by matters currently being
resolved with the joint venture partners. No assessment has been undertaken on
the performance of Camelia Close (Tadworth) Residents Management Company
due to its recent establishment and the expectation that the Council’s involvement
will be short term.
11. More detail of the current status and performance of the Council’s interest in each
company is set out below.
Greensand Holdings Limited
12. Greensand Holdings Limited is a property investment and development company,
established to facilitate the Council’s property investment activities. It is wholly owned
by the Council. The creation of the company was authorised by the Executive on 15
September 2016.
13. The company was initially funded through a loan from the Council. It generates an
income from one of its property holdings and provides an income stream to the
Council through the payment of interest on the loan.
14. As of 31 March 2021, the company had received £13.258m in loan funding from the
Council comprising


£2.270m in 2016/17 for the purchase of office premises; and



£10.988m in 2019/20 for the purchase of a plot of land for development.

15. The office building provides a rental income sufficient for the company to pay
interest on the loan to the Council.
16. The development land provides a negligible income stream; £1.152m loan interest
has been accrued as of 31 March 2021 pending a decision on its future
development. This sum is impaired in the Council’s accounts to reflect uncertainty
regarding timing of loan repayment.
17. The current Directors of the company are William Pallett, Derek Beck and Councillor
R. Michalowski.
18. The company, from a shareholder perspective, is currently performing in line with
the Council’s objectives. The performance of the investment in the development site
will be dependent on future decisions made regarding said development.
19. The draft Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 for Greensand Holdings Limited are provided as Annex 1 to this
report, pending final auditor signature at time of writing.
20. Additional details are available in the exempt report set out in the Part 2 section of
this agenda.

81

Agenda Item 6
Horley Business Park Development Limited Liability Partnership
21. Horley Business Park Development LLP is a joint venture which was set up to bring
forward planning, and subsequent development, of employment land in the Horley
area. The creation of the company was authorised by the Executive on 15 October
2015, and a joint venture with Millhill Properties (Horley) Limited and Berwick Hill
Properties Limited was established in 2016.
22. The partnership is funded through loans from the Council and its partners. It does
not currently generate a profit, but is working towards the future development of the
proposed Horley Business Park as a long term project.
23. As of 31 March 2021, the company had received £0.602m in loan funding from the
Council (plus £0.276m accrued interest) to fund set up and working capital expenses.
This sum is impaired in the Council’s accounts to reflect uncertainty regarding timing
of loan repayment.
24. The Council is currently working to resolve a number of matters regarding its
relationship with the partners to the LLP with regard to both parties’ engagement
with the joint venture. In order to ensure we do not prejudice the current discussions
we cannot publish additional information, but an update will be provided once it is
possible to do so.
25. As identified in the Spring 2021 report, following the felling of a number of trees
without the Council’s knowledge on land owned by Millhill the Council is continuing
to enforce the Tree Preservation process, and cooperate with the relevant
authorities.
26. Due to the limitations placed on the joint venture’s operation by the matters we are
working to resolve, the company is not currently considered to be performing in line
with Council objectives. Once a resolution is reached, an approach will be agreed
for how to move forward in a way which aligns with the Council’s objectives.
27. The draft Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 for Horley Business Park Development LLP are provided as Annex 2 to this
report. Due to these accounts not yet being confirmed, they are presented as a
confidential annex at this time.
28. Additional details are available in the exempt report set out in the Part 2 section of
this agenda.
Pathway for Care Limited
29. Pathway for Care Limited provides supporting living facilities and support for their
residents at a number of sites in the borough and surrounding areas. The creation
of a predecessor company was authorised by the Executive on 14 July 2016; the
current company was subsequently established in April 2018.
30. The Council is a minority shareholder in the company, with the majority shareholding
held by Transforming Healthcare Group Limited. The Council has the right to
appoint a director to the board of the company.
31. The Council currently holds £1.1m redeemable preference shares in the company,
redeemable in April 2023, which were converted from a £1.1m loan to the
predecessor company in 2018. When redeemed, these will provide a capital receipt
for the Council, subject to the company holding sufficient funds to honour the

82

Agenda Item 6
redemption at that time.
32. The Council also stands to receive income from any dividends paid by the company.
Total dividends are stipulated to be 50% of net profits generated by the company,
subject to cash flow. Since 2018 the company has been investing in growing its
services, and during 2020/21, it reported that it had reduced voids, revised its
operating model, and consistently generated a monthly profit. However, it has not
yet declared a dividend income to the Council or any tangible plans for redemption
of the preference shares.
33. During 2020 Pathway for Care Limited changed its accounting reference date from
31 July to 31 December and lodged Financial Statements for the period ended 31
December 2020 with Companies House, see attached Annex 3.
34. The current Directors of the company are Mr. Oleksandr Vrublevskyi, Mr. James
Ford; and Councillor V. Lewanski, the Council appointed Director. Mr. Paul Green
and Mr. Warren Richards were previously directors of the company but resigned as
of 6 October 2021.
35. The Council is currently awaiting information the company’s most recent accounts
and internal performance measures, and a judgement on the performance of the
company is therefore subject to this information being received.
36. Additional details are available in the exempt report set out in the Part 2 section of
this agenda.
RBBC Limited
37. RBBC Limited was incorporated on 30 September 2020 following the dissolution of
the original RBBC Limited. It was created for the purpose of preserving the name to
allow the Council to use the company name in the future. The directors, appointed
for incorporation purposes, are the Director of People and the Director of Place. The
company is inactive and has not undertaken any activity in the current year.
RBBC Housing – Independent Living
38. This company is currently inactive, and has not undertaken any substantive activity
in the current year.
39. The company is currently being dissolved, as approved by the Commercial Ventures
Executive Sub-Committee.
Camelia Close (Tadworth) Residents Management Company Limited
40. This company was incorporated in May 2021, as a company limited by guarantee. It
is not a Council owned company however its directors are Richard Robinson, the
Council’s Head of Housing and Penny Craig, the Council’s Senior Development
Manager.
41. The company was established to ensure that the ownership and management of the
freehold can successfully be passed over to the residents upon the sale of the last
property, reducing the Council’s longer-term liability. It is a requirement that any
Resident Management Company (RMC) is set up prior to the first sale. At the point
of final property sale, the Council officers will resign their appointments.

83

Agenda Item 6
42. In line with the company’s Memorandums and Articles, following the granting of the
lease of the last flat, or transfer of the last house on the scheme, RBBC, as
Developer, will transfer the freehold of the remainder of the site to the RMC. A
specialist resident management company is currently appointed to handle all aspects
of leasehold management (estate cleaning services, service charge collection etc.),
and upon transfer to the RMC, the residents can chose to continue this appointment,
chose another company, or run the estate management themselves. 22 out of the 25
homes on the site have been reserved or sold, and all units are anticipated to be sold
by the end of this year/early next.
Forthcoming Business
43. The Council is currently developing Part 2 of its Commercial Strategy. This will help
set out the Council’s approach to future commercial activity, including regarding its
interests and objectives around companies.
44. In April 2021, the Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee reviewed and
noted the approach to the implementation of investment and company governance
agreed in January 2020. As further matters relating to companies are considered
and agreed, these will be reported in line with the agreed performance reporting
approach.
45. Where future arrangements regarding the Council’s interests in companies emerge
from this strategy, these will be reflected in future reporting on company
performance.
46. Work is also currently underway to explore the opportunity for the establishment of
a housing company.
Legal Implications
47. There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.
48. Where decisions are made which effect the Council’s companies, the legal
implications of these decisions will be considered as part of the decision making
process in each case.
Financial Implications
49. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The Council’s
annual statement of accounts incorporates the financial position of its companies as
part of its group financial statements.
50. Where decisions are made which impact the Council’s companies, the financial
implications of these decisions will be considered as part of the decision making
process in each case.
Equalities Implications
51. The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have
due regard to the need to:


Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited under the Act;

84

Agenda Item 6


Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those
protected characteristics and people who do not;



Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics
and people who do not.

52. The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age;
disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy/maternity; race; religion/faith; sex and
sexual orientation. In addition, marriage and civil partnership status applies to the
first part of the duty.
53. There are no direct equalities implications of this report, however an awareness of
the Council’s obligations with respect to these duties should form part of the
consideration of this report.
54. Where are decisions are made which effect the Council’s companies, the equalities
implications of these decisions will be considered as part of the decision making
process in each case.
55. The Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee shall generally have regard to
the obligations of the Equality Act (2010) in conducting its role as the representative
of the Council as a shareholder or partner in companies owned or part-owned by the
Council.
Communication Implications
56. There are no direct communication implications as a result of this report. However,
as identified in the Commercial Governance Framework, the Commercial Ventures
Executive Sub-Committee shall have regard for the Local Authorities (Companies)
Order 1995, which sets out the rights for authorities and individual Members to
receive company specific information.
Risk Management Considerations
57. All commercial ventures and investment activities contain an element of risk, and the
Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee shall consider these as part of the
decision making process for any future decisions relating to companies owned or
part-owned by the Council.
58. In monitoring the performance of companies owned or part-owned by the Council,
the Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee has regard to the fiduciary duty
the Council owes to its rate and local tax payers, to the public law requirements to
exercise the general power of competence for a proper purpose, and the
requirements of the Commercial Governance Framework which forms part of the
terms of reference of the sub-committee.
Environmental Considerations
59. There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report.

85

Agenda Item 6
60. Where decisions are made which effect the Council’s companies, the environmental
implications of these decisions will be considered as part of the decision making
process in each case.
Policy Framework
61. The recommendations of this report are consistent with the Council’s Policy
Framework.
62. All actions undertaken by the Council in respect of commercial activity (including
company activity) will be undertaken for the purpose of contributing to the
achievement of the ‘Funding our Services’ objective within the Council’s Corporate
Plan and supporting policy framework, unless otherwise specified by statute.

86

Registered number
10508302

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT AND AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

87

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors

W Pallett
D Beck
R S Michalowski (appointed 6 October 2020)

Independent auditor

Kreston Reeves LLP
Springfield House
Springfield Road
Horsham
West Sussex
RH12 2RG

Registered office

Town Hall
Castlefield Road
Reigate
Surrey
RH2 0SH

Registered number

10508302

88

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONTENTS

Page

Directors' report

1

Independent auditor's report

2 to 5

Statement of comprehensive income

6

Statement of financial position

7

Statement of changes in equity

8

Cash flow statement

9

Notes to the financial statements

10 to 20

89

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
The directors present their report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Principal activities
The company’s principal activity during the year was that of commercial property investment and development.
Directors
The directors who served during the year were as follows:
J Jory (resigned 31 July 2020)
W Pallett
D Beck
R S Michalowski (appointed 6 October 2020)
Directors' responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) (as adopted by the European Union) and applicable UK law. Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:
● select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
● make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
● state whether applicable IFRSs have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements;
● prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.
Disclosure of information to the auditor
The directors confirm that:
- so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is
unaware; and
- the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.
Small company special provisions
The report of the directors has been prepared taking advantage of the small companies exemption in Part 15 of the
Companies Act 2006.
This report was approved by the board on

and signed on behalf of the board by

-----------------------------------------W Pallett
Director

1

90

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Greensand Holdings Limited (the "company") for the year ended 31
December 2020 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
In our opinion the financial statements:
● give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its loss for the
year then ended;
● have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and
● have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to note 5 in the financial statements and the section on investment properties. This sets out the basis
on which the independent valuation of investment properties has been undertaken in the prior year. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual Report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

2

91

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
● the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
● the Directors' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors’ Report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:
● adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
● the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
● certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
● we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
● the directors were not entitled to prepare and the Directors' Report in accordance with the small companies
regime and take advantage of the small companies exemption from the requirement to prepare a Strategic Report.

Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 1, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

3

92

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud
Based on our understanding of the company and industry, and through discussion with the directors and other
management (as required by auditing standards), we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to Landlord and Tenant legislation and health and safety. We considered the extent to which noncompliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that
have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006 and taxation
legislation. We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications
of non-compliance throughout the audit. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks
were related to management bias in accounting estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as the
valuation of investment properties and inventories, and revenue recognition. Audit procedures performed by the
engagement team included:
● Discussions with management and assessment of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations and fraud; and
● Assessment of identified fraud risk factors; and
● Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates; and
● Reviewing contracts to ensure that revenue recognition was appropriate; and
● Confirmation of related parties with management, and review of transactions throughout the period to identify
any previously undisclosed transactions with related parties outside the normal course of business; and
● Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; and
● Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any manual entries made at the year end for financial
statement preparation.
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the
more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.

4

93

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company's internal control.
● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
● Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Graham Hunt BA FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Kreston Reeves LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Horsham
Date:

5

94

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
Notes

2020

2019

£

£

Revenue

177,833

175,780

Administrative expenses

(56,839)

(53,360)

(521,900)

(210,500)

Fair value movement on investment property
Impairment to inventories

5

(1,726,892)

-

Operating loss

6

(2,127,798)

(88,080)

Finance income

250

Finance costs

7

Loss before taxation
Tax expense

570

(102,221)

(102,149)

(2,229,769)

(189,659)

8

-

31,721

Loss for the year

(2,229,769)

(157,938)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to shareholders

(2,229,769)

(157,938)

Statement of total recognised gains and losses
The company has no recognised gains or losses other than the loss for the above financial year.

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 10 to 20 form part of the financial statements
6

95

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER: 10508302

Notes

2020
£

£

2019
£

£

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property

9

1,860,100

2,382,000

Inventories

10

10,168,000

11,076,938

Trade and other receivables

11

3,833

57,118

Cash and cash equivalents

12

113,228

122,643

12,145,161

13,638,699

Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

13

45,744

124,887

Current tax liabilities

13

3,960

3,960

49,704

128,847

14,209,380

13,394,006

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

14

TOTAL LIABILITIES

14,259,084

13,522,853

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital

16

Revaluation reserve

17

(439,715)

100

82,185

Retained earnings

17

(1,674,308)

33,561

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

12,145,161

The financial statements were approved by the board and authorised for issue on

------------------------------------------------W Pallett
Director

The notes on pages 10 to 20 form part of the financial statements
7

96

100

13,638,699

and signed on behalf of the board by

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Equity attributable to equity holders of the company

Issued share
capital

Revaluation
reserve

Retained
earnings

Total equity

£

£

£

£

At 1 January 2020

100

82,185

115,846

Loss for the year

-

Transfer to revaluation reserve

-

(521,900)

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

(521,900)

(1,707,869)

(2,229,769)

100

(439,715)

(1,674,308)

(2,113,923)

At 31 December 2020

-

33,561
(2,229,769)

(2,229,769)

521,900

-

Equity attributable to equity holders of the company

Issued share
capital

Revaluation
reserve

Retained
earnings

Total equity

£
Difference btween the historical cost depreciation charge and the actual

£

£

£

At 1 January 2019

100

257,004

273,784

Transfer to revaluation reserve

-

(174,819)

174,819

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

(174,819)

16,881

(157,938)

33,561

115,846

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2019

100

-

16,680

82,185

The notes on pages 10 to 20 form part of the financial statements
8

97

(157,938)

(157,938)
-

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
2020

2019

£

£

(2,229,769)

(157,938)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year
Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash items:
Finance income

(250)

(570)

Finance costs

102,221

102,149

Revaluation

521,900

210,500

Corporation tax

-

Deferred tax

-

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

(1,605,898)

3,960
(35,681)
122,420

Working capital adjustments:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

908,938

Increase/(decrease) in payables

(27,823)

Decrease/(increase) in receivables

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

(4,170)

53,285

(57,118)

934,400

(11,138,226)

(671,498)

(11,015,806)

-

Net cash used in operating activities

(11,076,938)

(671,498)

(3,912)
(11,019,718)

Investing activities
Interest received

250

570

Net cash generated by investing activities

250

570

Financing activities
Loan from shareholder
Interest paid
Net cash generated by financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

815,374
(153,541)

11,124,367
(25,239)

661,833

11,099,128

(9,415)

79,980

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

122,643

42,663

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

113,228

122,643

The notes on pages 10 to 20 form part of the financial statements
9

98

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
1

General information
Greensand Holdings Limited is a private company limited by share capital and incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006. The nature of the company's operations and its principal activities are set out in the Directors' Report.
The address of its registered office and principal place of business is:
Town Hall
Castlefield Road
Reigate
Surrey
RH2 0SH

2

Adoption of new and revised standards
During the financial year, there were no new IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that were effective for the first time that would be
expected to have a material impact on the company.
The following pronouncements have been adopted in the year and either had no impact on the financial statements or resulted
in changes to presentation and disclosure only:
- Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3); effective 1 January 2020
- Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8); effective 1 January 2020
- COVID-19 Rent Related Concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16); effective 1 June 2020
- Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting; effective 1 January 2020
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations relevant to the company,
which have not been applied in these financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective:
- References to the Conceptual Framework; effective 1 January 2021
- Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37); effective 1 January 2022
- Annual improvements to the IFRs Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16); effective 1 January
2022
- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1); effective 1 January 2023
The directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations in future periods will have no material impact
on the financial statements of the company.

3

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted
by the European Union and are consistent with the IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and IFRIC
interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these financial statements and are in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

10

99

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
3

Significant accounting policies - continued

Basis of accounting
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis as modified by the accounting policies below.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the company operates and rounded to the nearest £.
The following principal accounting policies have been applied:

Presentation of financial statements in accordance with IAS 1 (Revised 2007)
The financial statements are presented in accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised 2007).

Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recoverable, net of VAT. The company's policy for the recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the leasing policy below.

Leasing
The company as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant leases.

Investment properties
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation, is initially recognised at cost, including
associated transaction costs, and subsequently at fair value at the balance sheet date. The fair value is based on market values
as determined by professionally qualified external valuers. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Inventories
Inventories comprise land and property held for development and resale, and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes all directly attributable expenditure necessary to bring the inventories to their existing condition and
location. Costs are assigned by specific identification and include the cost of acquisition, subsequent development costs and
borrowing costs during development. Net realisable value is determined by the directors.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost. A provision for impairment
of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the
provision is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period comprise cash at bank and in hand.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost.

11

100

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
3

Significant accounting policies - continued

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income over the periods of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred, unless they relate to a qualifying asset
in which case they are capitalised and included as part of the cost of the qualifying asset at the year end.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in
the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and items that are never taxable or deductible. The company's corporation tax liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end the reporting period.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for
using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that such taxable profits will be available, against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profits nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Accounting for financial assets and liabilities
The company’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks including the effects of changes in interest rates on debt,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors consider that the company does not have material exposures in any of these areas
and consequently does not use derivative financial instruments to manage these exposures.
The company's financial assets consist of trade and other receivables, and are summarised in note 4. Trade and other
receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, none of which are quoted in an active market. After initial
recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.
Receivables are considered for impairment on a case-by-case basis when they are past due at the balance sheet date or when
objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default.
The company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables which are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. A summary of the company's financial liabilities is given in note 4.

12

101

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
3

Significant accounting policies - continued

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. While the impact of Covid-19 has been assessed by the
directors so far as reasonably possible, due to its unprecendented impact on the wider economy, it is difficult to evaluate with
any certainty the potential outcomes on the company's trade, its tenants and suppliers. However, taking into consideration the
company's planning, the nature of its long term borrowings and the continuing support of its shareholder, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
4

Financial risk management
The company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate
risk. The company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of the marketplace and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the company's financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.

Market risk
The company is exposed to market risk, primarily related to interest rates and the market value of the investment property and
the net realisable value of inventories.

Interest rate risk
The company monitors interest rate cash flow exposures on its long term borrowing. The company does not use derivative
financial instruments to mitigate these risks.

Credit risk
The company's exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying value of financial assets recognised at the balance sheet date,
as summarised below:
2020

2019

£

£

Classes of financial assets - carrying amounts
Cash and cash equivalents

113,228

Trade and other receivables

122,643

3,833

57,118

117,061

179,761

The maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to trade and other receivables is equivalent to the year end balance.
The company continuously monitors the creditworthiness of tenants and other counterparties. The company's policy is only to
deal with creditworthy counterparties.
The directors consider that all the above financial assets are not impaired at the reporting date under review and are of good
quality credit, based on all available financial information.
The company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any company of counterparties
having similar characteristics other than those debtors which are disclosed in note 11. The credit risk for cash and cash
equivalents is considered negligible since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

13

102

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
4

Financial risk management - continued

Liquidity risk
Liquidity needs are monitored carefully on a day-to-day basis. Longer term liquidity needs are assessed through monthly,
quarterly, and annual cash flow forecasts.
As of 31 December 2020, the company's liabilities have maturities which are summarised below:
Within 6
months

6 to 12
months

2 to 5 years

Later than 5
years

£

£

£

£

Trade and other payables

45,744

-

-

-

Borrowings

45,744

-

-

14,209,380
14,209,380

This compares to the maturity of the company's financial liabilities in the previous reporting period as follows:

Within 6
months
£

6 to 12 months
£

124,887
124,887

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

-

2 to 5 years
£
-

Later than 5
years
£
13,394,006
13,394,006

Capital management policies
The company's capital management objectives are:
- to ensure the company's ability to continue as a going concern; and
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders.
Capital for the reporting period under review is summarised as follows:
2020
£
Share capital

100
(439,715)

Revaluation reserve

2019
£
100
82,185
33,561

Retained earnings

(1,674,308)

Borrowings

14,209,380

13,394,006

12,095,457

13,509,852

The company has no covenant obligations with respect to capital ratios.

14

103

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
5

Critical accounting judgements

Critical judgements in applying the company's accounting policies
In the process of applying the company's accounting policies, the following judgements have had the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Investment properties
The company holds investment property with fair value of £1,860,100 at the year end (see note 9). In order to determine the
fair value of investment property the company has engaged independent valuation specialists with experience in the location
and nature of the property being valued. They have used a valuation technique based on comparable market data. The
determined fair value of the investment property is most sensitive to fluctuations in the property market.
As the future impact of Covid-19 is unknown, the prior year valuation provided by the independent valuer was reported on the
basis of a 'material valuation uncertainty'. Consequently, less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be attached to the
prior year valuation than would normally be the case.

Recoverability of inventories
Inventories of £10,168,000 (note 10) are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value after taking into account all
available information at the reporting date. The intention is to hold the inventories for development and at the balance sheet
date they are not forecast to be realised in the short to medium term. The development project is still in its early stages, and
this increases the estimation uncertainty as the total forecast development costs and ultimate net realisable value are subject to
a number of uncertain future events including, but not limited to, the receipt of planning permission, the total build cost and
fluctuations in the property market. The directors have obtained an independent, professional valuation of the development
land at the balance sheet date to assist them in determining its net realisable value. Based on the stage of completion of the
development, the directors are of the opinion that the current net realisable value of inventories is unlikely to be materially
different from the independent valuation. This has resulted in an impairment of inventories of £1,726,892 being recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the year. The commercial viability of the development is kept under regular
review by the directors to ensure that, so far as reasonably possible, inventories continue to be stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

6

Operating loss
2020

2019

£

£

This is stated after charging:
Auditor's remuneration - audit work
Auditor's remuneration - other services

7

4,500

4,000

7,963
12,463

2,224
6,224

Finance costs

Loan interest

2020

2019

£

£

102,221

102,149

In addition to loan interest included as a finance cost, during the year the company capitalised loan interest of £815,375 (2019:
£135,896).

15

104

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
8

Taxation
2020

2019

Analysis of tax charge/(credit) in year

£

£

Total current tax (see below)

-

Deferred tax (see below)

-

3,960
(35,681)
(31,721)

Factors affecting tax charge/(credit) for year
The charge/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the loss in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before tax on continuing operations

Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19%

2020

2019

£

£

(2,229,769)

(189,659)

(423,656)

(36,035)

Effects of:
Fair value movement not taxable

99,161

Deferred tax asset not recognised

39,995

324,495

-

Total current tax (see above)

-

3,960

Total deferred tax (see above)

-

(35,681)

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year

-

(31,721)

16

105

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
9

Investment property
Freehold
property
£
Fair value
At 1 January 2020

2,382,000

Revaluation

(521,900)

At 31 December 2020

1,860,100

Fair value
At 31 December 2020

1,860,100

At 31 December 2019

2,382,000

Investment property with a fair value of £1,860,100 was held as security against borrowings.
The company's investment property is classed as level 2, as defined by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, in the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 December 2020. Level 2 inputs are observable and comprise an assessment of current market conditions,
recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets in the locality.
The fair value of the company's investment property as at 31 December 2020 was determined by an independent external
valuer at that date. The valuations are in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors ("RICS") valuation Professional Standards ("The Red Book"). Fair values of investment properties are calculated using an income approach and the
main assumptions supporting the valuation are in respect of rents due, extant leases and yields.
The property income earned by the company from its investment property, which is leased to tenants under non-cancellable
operating leases, amounted to £177,833 for the year.
The historical cost of the investment property is £2,299,815.
10 Inventories

Inventories

2020

2019

£

£

10,168,000

11,076,938

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in the year amounted to £1,726,892 (2019 - £nil). This includes an amount of
£1,726,892 (2019: £nil) resulting from impairment of inventories.
11 Trade and other receivables
2020

2019

£

£

Trade receivables

1,158

Prepayments and accrued income

1,277

22,410
63

Other receivables

1,398

34,645

3,833

57,118

All amounts are due within one year. The carrying value of receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

17

106

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
12 Cash and cash equivalents
2020
£
Cash at bank

113,228

2019
£
122,643

13 Current liabilities

Trade payables

2020

2019

£

£

7,136

10,513

Accruals and deferred income

38,608

114,374

Trade and other payables

45,744

124,887

3,960

3,960

49,704

128,847

Corporation tax payable

The fair value of the trade and other payables classified as financial instruments are disclosed in the financial instruments note.
The company's exposure to market and liquidity risks, including maturity analysis relating to trade and other payables, is
disclosed in the financial risk management note.
14 Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

2020

2019

£

£

14,209,380

13,394,006

15 Borrowings

Secured borrowings
Loans and accrued interest due to shareholder
Amount due for settlement within 12 months
Amount due for settlement after 12 months

2019

2019

£

£

14,209,380

13,394,006

-

-

14,209,380

13,394,006

The loans from Reigate and Banstead Borough Council are denominated in sterling. The first loan carries an interest rate
equivalent to the rate charged by the Public Works Loan Board plus 2% with the final repayment due on 19 February 2023. The
second loan carried an interest rate of 7.4% with the final repayment due on 25 October 2034. The loans and accrued interest
are secured on the freehold investment property and inventories.

18

107

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
16 Share capital
2020

2020

2019

2019

Number

£

Number

£

Allotted and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 each

100

100

100

100

17 Reserves
Revaluation reserve
Represents accumulated unrealised revaluation gains/(losses) of the investment property to its fair value.
Retained earnings
Represents accumulated realised profits less accumulated realised losses.

18 Operating lease arrangements
Property rental income earned during the year was £177,833 (2019 - £175,780). The lessees do not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.
At the balance sheet date the company had contracted with tenants for the following total future minimum lease receipts:
2020

2019

£

£

Within one year

176,790

174,690

One to two years

176,790

123,563

Two to three years

176,790

98,000

Three to four years

110,057

98,000

Four to five years

76,690

32,667

In over five years

25,563

-

742,680

526,920

19 Related party transactions
Reigate and Banstead Borough Council ("RBBC") (Shareholder)
During the year RBBC continued to provide a loan to the company of £13,258,110 (2019: £13,258,110). Interest charged on
the loans in the year amounted to £917,596 (2019: £238,045). At the year end £25,590 (2019: £76,910) of unpaid interest is
included in accruals and £815,375 (2019: £135,896) of unpaid interest has been added to the loan and included as part of the
amount due to RBBC at the year end of £14,209,380 (2019: £13,394,006) (note 14). RBBC recharged its officer time spent
dealing with company management and administration and this amounted to £7,745 (2019: £35,367). The balance outstanding
at the year end is £7,136 (2019: £18,258).

W Pallett (Director)
During the year the company was charged £657 (2019: £1,552) for management services by Mr W Pallett.
D Beck (Director)
During the year the company was charged £2,880 (2019: £Nil) for management services by Mr D Beck.

19

108

GREENSAND HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
20 Financial instruments
Categories of financial instruments
The company held the following financial assets:
2020
£
2,556
113,228
115,784

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

2019
£
57,055
122,643
179,698

The company held the following financial liabilities:
2020
£
45,744
14,209,380
14,255,124

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

2019
£
106,993
13,394,006
13,500,999

21 Ultimate controlling party
The company is controlled by Reigate and Banstead Borough Council which owns 100% of the company's share capital.
0

20

109

0

This page is intentionally left blank

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

Agenda Item 7
Signed off by

Interim Head of Finance

Author

Catriona Marchant,
Democratic Services Officer

Telephone

Tel: 01737 276066

Email

catriona.marchant@reigatebanstead.gov.uk

To

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date

Thursday, 21 October 2021

Executive
Member

Deputy Leader and Portfolio
Holder for Finance and
Governance

Key Decision Required

N

Wards Affected

(All Wards);

Subject

Constitution of Budget Scrutiny Panel 2021/22

Recommendations
1. To agree the membership of the Budget Scrutiny Review Panel and the
timetable for scrutiny of the Budget for 2022/23 as set out in the report;
2. To agree the scope of the Budget Scrutiny Review Panel’s work during 2021/22.

Executive Summary
To consider the membership, timetable and scope of work of the Budget Scrutiny
Review Panel during 2021/22.
Background
3. The Executive at its meeting on 25 March 2021 supported the Committee’s
request in the Overview & Scrutiny Committee’s annual work programme 2021/22 for
the Budget Scrutiny Review Panel to be re-established for 2021/22.
4. The Committee is therefore requested to agree activity for the Panel for the year
2021/22. This will focus on consideration of the draft budget proposals for 2022/23.

121

Agenda Item 7
Membership
5. The Budget Scrutiny Review Panel is a 7 Member panel. The political proportionality
requirements do not apply to scrutiny panels. However, the Committee has always
sought to apply the principles. Therefore, this year’s membership is proposed as
follows:
 Conservative 4
 Green 1
 Liberal Democrat 1
 Residents’ Association 1
6. Meetings of the Panel are open to any Councillor to attend.
7. The Committee is asked to consider the nominations for Membership of the Panel,
and the following have been received:





Conservative Party: Nominations to be confirmed.
Green Party: Councillor Essex
Liberal Democrats: Councillor Elbourne.
Residents’ Association: Councillor Harrison

The remaining nominations will be confirmed at the meeting.
8. The Committee is requested to approve the nominations made.

Timetable
9. The indicative timetable for development of budget proposals for the coming year is
as follows:

Date

Meeting

Thursday 18 November

Executive meeting – to approve draft
budget for 2022/23 for formal
consultation.
Budget Scrutiny Panel meeting – to
consider and review the draft budget
proposals and review Members’ Advance
Questions and written responses.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee – to
receive the Budget Scrutiny Panel’s
report.
Executive meeting – to receive O&S
Budget scrutiny report and
recommendations.

Wednesday 1 December

Thursday 9 December

Thursday 16 December

122

Agenda Item 7
Thursday 27 January

Thursday 10 February

Executive meeting –
To approve a Proposed Budget for
2022/23 and Council Tax
recommendation to Full Council.
Council meeting – Council to consider
the Budget and Council Tax
recommendation from the Executive for
2022/23.

Role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
10. The Panel’s activity focuses on considering and responding to the draft budget
proposals for 2022/23 published by the Executive at its meeting on 18 November. As in
previous years this is expected to focus on providing an opportunity for Panel members
to review the draft budget proposals, raise questions, receive written responses and
have an opportunity to meet to discuss them.
11. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the report of the Budget
Scrutiny Review Panel at its meeting on Thursday 9 December and make any
comments on the draft budget for 2022/23, for consideration by the Executive in line
with the Council’s Policy Framework and Budget Procedure Rules.
Legal Implications
12. There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.
Financial Implications
13. There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations set out in this
report. Should any of the work undertaken by Overview and Scrutiny generate
recommendations with financial implications then these will be highlighted at that time.
Equalities Implications
14. The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to
have due regard to the need to:
 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited under the Act;
 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected
characteristics and people who do not;
 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and
people who do not.
15. The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age;
disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy/maternity; race; religion/faith; sex and
sexual orientation. In addition, marriage and civil partnership status applies to the
first part of the duty.

123

Agenda Item 7
16. The Committee, and the Review Panel, should ensure regard is given to these
duties by considering them through the course of its work. This should include
considering:
 How budget proposals impact on different groups within the community,
particularly those that share the protected characteristics;
 Whether the impact on particular groups is fair and proportionate;
 Whether there is equality of access to services and fair representation of all
groups within the Borough;
 Whether any positive opportunities to advance equality of opportunity and/or
good relations between people, are being realised.
Background Papers
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Work Programme 2021/22 report and summary
overview Annex 1

124

Agenda Item 8
SIGNED OFF BY

Head of Legal and Governance

AUTHOR

Catriona Marchant, Democratic
Services Officer

TELEPHONE

Tel: 01737 276066

EMAIL

catriona.marchant@reigatebanstead.gov.uk

TO

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

DATE

Thursday 21 October 2021

MEMBER

Chair, Overview and Scrutiny

KEY DECISION REQUIRED

No

WARDS AFFECTED

All Wards

SUBJECT

Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme
2021/22

RECOMMENDATIONS
i.

To consider the proposed future work programme for the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, set out in Annex 1; and the Action Tracker, set out in Annex 2.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
The work programme for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee was recommended by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 18 February 2021 and was
recommended by Executive on 25 February 2021 that it be approved by Council.
Arrangements for implementing this year’s work programme have progressed and the
latest plans are outlined in Annex 1.In addition an Action Tracker (Annex 2) which sets
out Member requests for follow-up information from the previous meeting is added.
This standing item on the Committee’s Forward Work Programme keeps the Committee
informed and to prepare for upcoming business.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The selection and prioritisation of work is essential if the scrutiny function is to be
successful, add value and retain credibility. This proposed standing item gives the
Committee an opportunity to view and comment on future planning of the Overview and
Scrutiny work programme.

125

Agenda Item 8
Work Programme 2021/22
The Work Programme 2021/22 is a useful tool in planning the overview and scrutiny work
programme. The Future Work Programme will be updated before each meeting and feed
into the Corporate Forward Plan.
Action Tracker
The Action Tracker sets out requests for any follow-up written information from the
previous meeting.

STATUTORY POWERS
1.

The Local Government Act 2000 (as amended) established Overview and Scrutiny
Committees within the Leader with Cabinet model of governance. Subsequent
legislation including the Police and Justice Act 2006, the Local Government Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007, the Local Democracy, Economic Development
and Construction Act 2009, the Localism Act 2011 and the Local Authorities
(Overview and Scrutiny Committees) (England) Regulations 2012 has provided
additional responsibilities on the Committee.

ANNEXES
-

Annex 1 – Future Work Programme 2021/22
Annex 2 – Action Tracker

126

Reigate and Banstead Borough Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
Published:
Lead
Member(s)

Officer
sign off

Subject

O&S

Catriona
Marchant,
Democratic
Services Officer

Deputy Leader
and Portfolio
Holder for
Finance and
Governance,
Portfolio Holder
for Corporate
Policy and
Resources,
Portfolio Holder
for Investment
and Companies

Commercial and
Investment
Director, Director
of People,
Director of Place,
Interim Head of
Finance

Organisation Portfolio Holder
Updates

21 Oct 2021

Dan Woodard,
Sustainability
Project Officer

Portfolio Holder
for Corporate
Policy and
Resources

Head of
Corporate Policy

Environmental Sustainability:
Progress update

Report
Author(s)

Executive

Council

Open /
Exempt

21 October 2021
Open

127

Updates from Executive
Members in Corporate Policy &
Resources, Finance &
Governance, Investment &
Companies

21 Oct 2021

18 Nov 2021

Open

To receive a progress update on
the work towards the objectives
set out in the Council's
Environmental Sustainability
Strategy.

Page 1 of 6

Key

Report
Author(s)
Tom Borer, Policy
Officer

Lead
Member(s)

Officer
sign off

Portfolio Holder
for Investment
and Companies

Commercial and
Investment
Director

Subject
Companies Performance
Update - Autumn 2021

O&S
9 Sep 2021

Executive
18 Nov 2021

To consider an update on the
performance of Council
companies.
Catriona
Marchant,
Democratic
Services Officer

Deputy Leader
and Portfolio
Holder for
Finance and
Governance

Interim Head of
Finance

Constitution of Budget
Scrutiny Panel

Council

Open /
Exempt
Part
exempt
Commer
cially
Sensitive
.

21 Oct 2021

Open

9 Dec 2020

Open

To establish the Budget Scrutiny
Panel to review Service &
Financial Plans 2022/23

128

1 December 2021 (Budget Scrutiny Panel)
Catriona
Marchant,
Democratic
Services Officer

Councillor Nick
Harrison

Interim Head of
Finance

Budget Scrutiny Panel:
Service and Financial
Planning 2021/22
The report and
recommendations of the Budget
Scrutiny Panel including any
observations on the Service and
Financial Planning proposals for
2021/22, for consideration by
the Executive in line with the
Council's budget and policy
procedure rules.

9 December 2021
Richard Robinson,
Head of Housing

Portfolio Holder
for Housing and
Support

Head of Housing

Homelessness & Rough
Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027

9 Dec 2021

24 Mar 2022

Open

Page 2 of 6

Key

Report
Author(s)

Lead
Member(s)

Officer
sign off

Subject

O&S

Executive

Council

Open /
Exempt

Key

To consider and provide
feedback on the priorities
proposed in the Homelessness
& Rough Sleeping Strategy
2022-27

Deputy Leader
and Portfolio
Holder for
Finance and
Governance,
Portfolio Holder
for Corporate
Policy and
Resources

Interim Head of
Finance

Catriona
Marchant,
Democratic
Services Officer

Deputy Leader
and Portfolio
Holder for
Finance and
Governance

Interim Head of
Finance

Portfolio Holder
for Investment
and Companies

Commercial and
Investment
Director

129

David Brown,
Finance Manager,
Luke Harvey,
Project &
Performance
Team Leader, Pat
Main, Interim Head
of Finance and
Assets

Cath Rose, Head
of Corporate
Policy, Projects
and Business
Assurance

Quarter 2 Performance Report
2021/22

9 Dec 2021

16 Dec 2021

Open

To consider the Council's
performance in Quarter 2
2021/22

Observations on Budget
Proposals - Budget Scrutiny
Panel report

9 Dec 2021

Open

Report from the Budget Scrutiny
Panel - observations on the
Budget Proposals (Service and
Financial Planning 2022/23)
Commercial Strategy - Part 2
To consider Part 2 of the
Council's Commercial Strategy.

9 Dec 2021

16 Dec 2021

Part
exempt
Commer
cially
Sensitive
.

Page 3 of 6

KEY

Report
Author(s)

Lead
Member(s)

Officer
sign off

Subject

O&S

Executive

Council

Open /
Exempt

Key

20 January 2022
Mari RobertsWood, Director of
People

Leader of the
Council

Chief Executive

Leader's Update (January
2022)

20 Jan 2021

KEY

To receive an update from the
Leader of the Council.
Catriona
Marchant,
Democratic
Services Officer

130

Catriona
Marchant,
Democratic
Services Officer

Portfolio Holder
for Community
Partnerships,
Portfolio Holder
for Housing and
Support,
Portfolio Holder
for Leisure and
Culture

Director of
People, Head of
Community
Partnerships,
Head of
Wellbeing and
Intervention

People Portfolio Holders
Update

Leader of the
Council

Head of Legal
and Governance

Calendar of Meetings 2022/23

20 Jan 2022

Open

Update from Executive
Members of Housing & Support,
Leisure & Culture and
Community Partnerships

20 Jan 2022

27 Jan 2022

10 Feb 2022

Open

Calendar of Meetings for
2022/23

17 February 2022
Catriona
Marchant,
Democratic
Services Officer

Portfolio Holder
for Community
Partnerships

Director of
People, Head of
Community
Partnerships

Annual Community Safety
Partnership Scrutiny

Director of Place,
Head of

Place Portfolio Holders
update

17 Feb 2022

Open

17 Mar 2022

Open

Annual 'crime and disorder'
scrutiny - Community
Partnership

17 March 2022
Catriona
Marchant,

Portfolio Holder
for Economic

Page 4 of 6

Lead
Member(s)

Officer
sign off

Democratic
Services Officer

Prosperity,
Portfolio Holder
for
Neighbourhood
Services,
Portfolio Holder
for Planning
Policy and
Place Delivery

Economic
Prosperity, Head
of Neighbourhood
Operations, Head
of Planning

Luke Harvey,
Project &
Performance
Team Leader,
David Brown,
Finance Manager,
Pat Main, Interim
Head of Finance
and Assets

Portfolio Holder
for Corporate
Policy and
Resources,
Deputy Leader
and Portfolio
Holder for
Finance and
Governance

Interim Head of
Finance

Catriona
Marchant,
Democratic
Services Officer

Councillor Nick
Harrison

Head of Legal
and Governance,
Interim Head of
Paid Service

Overview and Scrutiny
Annual Report 2021/22

Catriona
Marchant,
Democratic
Services Officer

Councillor Nick
Harrison

Head of Legal
and Governance

Overview and Scrutiny
Annual Work Programme
2022/23

Report
Author(s)

Subject

O&S

Executive

17 Mar 2022

24 Mar 2022

Council

Open /
Exempt

Update from Place Executive
Members of Planning Policy &
Delivery, Neighbourhood
Services and Economic
Prosperity

Quarter 3 Performance Report
2021/22

Open

131

To consider the Council's
performance in Quarter 3
2021/22

17 Mar 2022

7 Apr 2022

Open

7 Apr 2022

Open

Annual Report from the
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee 2021/22
17 Mar 2022

24 Mar 2022

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee's Forward Work
Programme for the year ahead
2022/23

Page 5 of 6

Key

Report
Author(s)

Lead
Member(s)

Tom Borer, Policy
Officer

Portfolio Holder
for Investment
and Companies

Officer
sign off
Commercial and
Investment
Director

Subject
Companies Performance
Update - Spring 2022

O&S
17 Mar 2022

Executive

Council

2 Jun 2022

To consider an update on the
performance of Council
companies.

Open /
Exempt
Part
exempt
Commer
cially
Sensitive
.

Contact: Democratic Services Email: democratic@reigate-banstead.gov.uk Telephone: 01737 276812
Address: Town Hall, Castlefield Road, Reigate, Surrey RH2 0SH

132
Page 6 of 6

Key

Action tracker - Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2021/22

Meeting
2020/21

Subject and request

Action

Who

When

Completed

17 June
2021

Item 10 – Overview of
Scrutiny

Charitable Trusts – Members
requested updated information
regarding consultation with the Charity
Commission on Trust Funds, including
the Reigate Baths Trust Fund and
Commons Trust to identify what the
funds can or cannot be used for.

Request
to officers

In progress

Given complexity of this matter,
before Legal can write to the Charities
Commission to request a transfer into
our management, they need to
understand which Charitable Trusts
RBBC is ‘sole trustee’ of and which is
‘custodian trustee’. Seeking Counsel
advice on this.

133

This page is intentionally left blank

134

